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·1· · · RENO, NEVADA, THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 3, 2020, 1:36 P.M.

·2· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · -o0o-

·3

·4· · · · · · ·THE HEARING OFFICER:· All right.· We are on the

·5· ·record in the Medical Examiners of the State of Nevada in

·6· ·the Matter of Charges and Complaint against Melissa Teresa

·7· ·Candrilli, C-A-N-D-R-I-L-L-I, RRT, Respondent.

·8· · · · · · ·On behalf of the Investigative Committee of the

·9· ·Board?

10· · · · · · ·MR. FRICKE:· Aaron Bart Fricke, Senior Deputy

11· ·General Counsel.

12· · · · · · ·THE HEARING OFFICER:· And our Respondent

13· ·Ms. Candrilli has not appeared today.· From what I am aware

14· ·of from the record in front of me, she has been properly

15· ·noticed of this hearing, but, Mr. Fricke, I'm going to have

16· ·you address what you are aware of as far as Ms. Candrilli's

17· ·nonappearance today.

18· · · · · · ·MR. FRICKE:· Thank you, Mr. Woodman.

19· ·Ms. Candrilli called our offices at approximately 10:00 a.m.

20· ·this morning and informed us that she would not be appearing

21· ·today.· She said that she is flying to Florida to take care

22· ·of her mother.

23· · · · · · ·I had been in contact with her periodically over

24· ·the last several months, and as of last week it was her

25· ·intention to, as of Thursday of last week she informed me
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·1· ·and my staff that her intention was to appear today.

·2· · · · · · ·So we prepared our facilities here and in

·3· ·Las Vegas considering the challenges that COVID presents to

·4· ·the Board's business.· At considerable staff time and Board

·5· ·costs, we arranged to have both conference facilities here

·6· ·in Reno and in Las Vegas to be made available as well as our

·7· ·witnesses appearing by videoconference and appropriate

·8· ·security was provided, but at the last minute Ms. Candrilli

·9· ·has determined that she will not appear today.· That's all,

10· ·that's all I have to report on that.

11· · · · · · ·THE HEARING OFFICER:· Very well.· Well, again, the

12· ·record reflects that she has been given proper notice.· We

13· ·know from your offer that she has actual notice, so I'm

14· ·prepared to move forward with the regularly scheduled

15· ·hearing today, so I'm going to turn it over to you,

16· ·Mr. Fricke, to present your case.

17· · · · · · ·MR. FRICKE:· Thank you, Mr. Woodman.· First of

18· ·all, I would like to thank both of you, the court reporter

19· ·and Mr. Woodman for coming today, and our staff.· This has

20· ·been a challenge to make arrangements.· We are doing our

21· ·very best to continue the Board's business while maintaining

22· ·sufficient social distancing measures to protect from the

23· ·outbreak of COVID-19.

24· · · · · · ·We have videoconference available in Las Vegas.

25· ·For the record, because of some sort of glitch in our system
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·1· ·this morning our witness in Las Vegas cannot see us, but he

·2· ·can hear us, and he also knows all of the people here.· He

·3· ·is familiar with them personally, so I don't think there

·4· ·will be any difficulty.

·5· · · · · · ·But so we are maintaining social distance here in

·6· ·the Reno office and sufficient that we will probably remove

·7· ·our masks for the proceeding, although if anybody has to

·8· ·change positions we will redon our masks.

·9· · · · · · ·THE HEARING OFFICER:· And I will just insert for

10· ·the record that a brief discussion about social distancing

11· ·and mask wearing was had prior to us going on the record and

12· ·our court reporter, I think, is comfortable?

13· · · · · · ·THE COURT REPORTER:· Yes.

14· · · · · · ·THE HEARING OFFICER:· And I want her to know if

15· ·she feels like I need to move further back from her, I will

16· ·gladly do that, because we do not want to endanger the most

17· ·important part of this proceeding who is keeping our record

18· ·for us.

19· · · · · · ·And so we just want to state for the record that

20· ·we believe we are doing our part on social distancing so

21· ·that we can get through the hearing mask-free today.

22· · · · · · ·MR. FRICKE:· Thank you, Mr. Woodman.· One

23· ·additional note, that the Investigative Committee would like

24· ·to formally withdraw Count III of the complaint, which was a

25· ·violation of NRS 630.3061(j), failure to timely notify the
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·1· ·Board of a change of permanent address.

·2· · · · · · ·I will just offer that although contact with

·3· ·Ms. Candrilli and difficulty of our staff in ascertaining

·4· ·her whereabouts and her current address is relevant to the

·5· ·Board's case, we would like to withdraw that count at this

·6· ·time.

·7· · · · · · ·THE HEARING OFFICER:· And that's fine.· It's the

·8· ·IC's complaint, so when their counsel wants to dismiss one

·9· ·of the counts, that's fine.· We will go on Counts I and II

10· ·today.

11· · · · · · ·MR. FRICKE:· Thank you.· Lastly, as a bit of

12· ·housekeeping on the rules of evidence, I will give my

13· ·obligatory recitation of that.· The rules of evidence for

14· ·proceedings before the Board are set forth succinctly in

15· ·NRS 233B.123.· "Evidence may be admitted, except where

16· ·precluded by statute, if it is of a type commonly relied

17· ·upon by reasonable and prudent persons in the conduct of

18· ·their affairs and when a hearing will be expedited and the

19· ·interests of the parties will not be prejudiced

20· ·substantially, any part of the evidence may be received in

21· ·written form."

22· · · · · · ·So, again, as no doubt everyone is aware, that the

23· ·rules of evidence are somewhat relaxed in a, quote, inquiry

24· ·of a Board of this character.· I have provided citations in

25· ·the past that the rules of evidence should not be too
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·1· ·narrowly constrained by technical rules as to the

·2· ·admissibility of proof in these types of cases as a general

·3· ·rule, and specifically hearsay is not a bar to admissibility

·4· ·as long as the interest of the parties will not be

·5· ·prejudiced substantially.

·6· · · · · · ·That is, that they are, "Fully apprised of the

·7· ·evidence submitted or to be considered, and must be given

·8· ·opportunity to cross-examine witnesses, to inspect

·9· ·documents, and to offer evidence in explanation or

10· ·rebuttal."· That's a quote from Interstate Commerce

11· ·Commission versus Baird 194 U.S. 25 at 44, 1904.

12· · · · · · ·And so for that reason we will, some of the

13· ·evidence in here will be offered by our witness, and we

14· ·believe it's the type of testimony that a reasonable and

15· ·prudent person would rely on in the conduct of their

16· ·affairs, and so we would request that it be allowed.

17· · · · · · ·THE HEARING OFFICER:· And I will just say this for

18· ·the record.· We know it's an administrative hearing.· It's

19· ·not judicial.· It's quasi judicial.

20· · · · · · ·I'm pretty well versed in the rules of evidence.

21· ·Based on all of my years of working as a Hearing Officer for

22· ·the Board, I would be pretty surprised to see you offer

23· ·anything that doesn't seem appropriate in my view.

24· · · · · · ·And at the end of the day, there is a whole lot of

25· ·what might not otherwise be admissible that gets into
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·1· ·evidence when there is no one to object, and so I think the

·2· ·fact that Ms. Candrilli has not availed herself of the

·3· ·opportunity to be here today really just, I'm not going to

·4· ·say it leaves us wide open, because if I see anything that I

·5· ·think is suspect coming in, I will certainly talk about it.

·6· · · · · · ·Again, I would be very surprised by that, but even

·7· ·in a purely judicial proceeding a lot of what might

·8· ·otherwise not be admissible evidence comes in because it

·9· ·doesn't get objected to, and so those are the ground rules

10· ·going in.· And so I will just say I'm not concerned about

11· ·what I anticipate seeing in terms of evidence.

12· · · · · · ·We already had a pretty significant hearing in

13· ·this case back in March at the summary suspension hearing,

14· ·and so I'm familiar probably with most of what I'm going to

15· ·hear today, none of which was concerning to me the last go

16· ·around.· And, as you know, Mr. Fricke, if I hear anything

17· ·that concerns me, I will certainly raise that, but I don't

18· ·anticipate it.

19· · · · · · ·MR. FRICKE:· Thank you, Mr. Woodman.· I will do my

20· ·very best to protect our record and you will, you will help

21· ·me out if I go astray.

22· · · · · · ·THE HEARING OFFICER:· Absolutely.

23· · · · · · ·MR. FRICKE:· So if I could begin with a very brief

24· ·opening statement.

25· · · · · · ·THE HEARING OFFICER:· Please.
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·1· · · · · · ·MR. FRICKE:· Thank you.· So this case is a case of

·2· ·the Investigative Committee of our Board bringing charges

·3· ·and a complaint against Melissa Teresa Candrilli,

·4· ·respiratory therapist.

·5· · · · · · ·The heart of this case is a question of

·6· ·Ms. Candrilli's fitness to practice respiratory care, and we

·7· ·are here to make a record of serious incidents that have

·8· ·occurred over the last two years that abundantly demonstrate

·9· ·that Ms. Candrilli is sadly unfit to practice respiratory

10· ·care, and that is Count I of the complaint.

11· · · · · · ·Count II of the complaint is willful and

12· ·intentional false statement in renewal of a license.· That's

13· ·NAC 630.540, in that through this process Ms. Candrilli did

14· ·not disclose to the Board, as she was required to do, the

15· ·fact that she had been dismissed, terminated that is, from

16· ·her employment at a hospital in Las Vegas and that dismissal

17· ·occurred just a few months before she filed her renewal

18· ·application.

19· · · · · · ·And the Board became aware of it and noted the

20· ·failure to disclose that as an omission that was a very

21· ·important one, because Ms. Candrilli was required to

22· ·disclose to the Board if she had been dismissed,

23· ·disciplined, or for violation of any hospital rules, and

24· ·which she had been, which would usually initiate, cause the

25· ·Board to initiate an investigation.
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·1· · · · · · ·We believe that the circumstances would

·2· ·demonstrate that that was a willful or intentional omission

·3· ·or misstatement, and we would ask the Board to find on that

·4· ·count as well that she willfully or intentionally provided a

·5· ·false statement on her renewal application.

·6· · · · · · ·So we have two counts before us and we are here to

·7· ·make a record of Ms. Candrilli's inability to practice

·8· ·respiratory therapy with reasonable skill and safety, a

·9· ·violation of NRS 630.306(1)(a), and a willful and

10· ·intentional false statement in renewal of a license in

11· ·NAC 630.540.

12· · · · · · ·The Board intends to admit Exhibits 2 through 23

13· ·into the record.· We have only one witness to call today on

14· ·direct.· We have witnesses available on rebuttal, if that

15· ·were to be necessary.· All staff that may be required to

16· ·further substantiate the documents I'm going to offer are

17· ·available.

18· · · · · · ·But Ms. Candrilli has unfortunately not availed

19· ·herself of the abundant assistance that our Board staff has

20· ·offered her to get the help, and by that I mean treatment

21· ·that we believe that she quite desperately needs.

22· · · · · · ·Ms. Candrilli was at one time a functioning

23· ·respiratory therapist maintaining a license for many years,

24· ·but sometime around 2017 or 2018 circumstances in her life

25· ·seemed to have changed, and it's abundantly clear that she
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·1· ·has a problem with alcohol and/or drugs, and she has been

·2· ·found by a licensed alcohol and drug counselor, who

·3· ·regularly provides evaluations for the Board, to be unfit

·4· ·for practice among other problems and that is, that is very

·5· ·unfortunate.

·6· · · · · · ·The Board and its staff stand ready to assist our

·7· ·practitioners with these types of problems providing

·8· ·resources and referral.· We stand ready today to help

·9· ·Ms. Candrilli get that help, and we would hope that she does

10· ·so that at some point in the future she can begin serving

11· ·patients in the State of Nevada.

12· · · · · · ·And respiratory services, respiratory therapy

13· ·services are actually in need in our state, and so the Board

14· ·has no interest in taking a good practitioner out of

15· ·practice.· Unfortunately, Ms. Candrilli has demonstrated

16· ·herself to be unfit and as a matter of public safety she

17· ·should be removed from practice.· And with that I can begin

18· ·to make our case.

19· · · · · · ·THE HEARING OFFICER:· And just briefly for the

20· ·record, there was a time since her suspension when she was

21· ·actually cooperating and the Board was working with her to

22· ·rehabilitate her to get her license back in a full

23· ·functioning status; isn't that correct?

24· · · · · · ·MR. FRICKE:· There were efforts in not, not --

25· ·well, I believe that that would be conversations we had in
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·1· ·furtherance of settlement of the case, so I can offer as

·2· ·counsel for the IC that I personally engaged with

·3· ·Ms. Candrilli extensively providing Ms. Candrilli an

·4· ·opportunity to settle this case by means of her entering a

·5· ·treatment program and that Ms. Candrilli would, her license

·6· ·would be -- suspension would be held until further order of

·7· ·the Board until she could demonstrate her sobriety, and

·8· ·Ms. Candrilli did not avail herself of that proposal.

·9· · · · · · ·THE HEARING OFFICER:· And the proposal was, just

10· ·to clarify, it was not that if she cooperated she would lose

11· ·her license, it was to the contrary, correct?

12· · · · · · ·MR. FRICKE:· Yes.· Pursuant to the summary

13· ·suspension hearing, which the Investigative Committee

14· ·summary suspended Ms. Candrilli late last year, and that

15· ·would have been on December 19th, 2019, a hearing was held

16· ·on that before you, Mr. Woodman, earlier this year and you

17· ·based upon the evidence and good cause saw fit to sustain

18· ·the order pending resolution of this complaint.

19· · · · · · ·My proposal to Ms. Candrilli on behalf of the

20· ·Investigative Committee was that that summary suspension

21· ·should remain in place until which time she could

22· ·demonstrate compliance with a regular drug and alcohol

23· ·treatment program, which would also include periodic drug

24· ·testing and counseling, and at which time she could make a

25· ·request to appear before the Board and demonstrate her
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·1· ·sobriety and the Board would be given an opportunity to lift

·2· ·that suspension.

·3· · · · · · ·THE HEARING OFFICER:· Very good.· I knew that

·4· ·there were substantial efforts from what I gathered both on

·5· ·the record and in communications that involved her off the

·6· ·record that it at least appeared to me that some positive

·7· ·things were happening and then all of that seemed to stop

·8· ·and thus we are here today, so let's go ahead with your

·9· ·case.

10· · · · · · ·MR. FRICKE:· Okay.· So I will just preface by

11· ·exhibits, so Exhibit 1, there are binders that have been

12· ·distributed to the Hearing Officer, the court reporter, and

13· ·our witness down in Las Vegas.· We have additional copies

14· ·available, and the Exhibits 2 through 23 we intend to offer

15· ·into evidence.

16· · · · · · ·We will speak to each one on the record as I go

17· ·through my case, and I will offer also that these are

18· ·documents that were submitted in the prior summary

19· ·suspension hearing and so we are not covering any unfamiliar

20· ·ground here.

21· · · · · · ·THE HEARING OFFICER:· Okay.· They all do look

22· ·familiar to me.· I looked through the binder and I didn't

23· ·see anything that looked new to me, so go ahead.

24· · · · · · ·MR. FRICKE:· So we have our -- may I call my first

25· ·witness?
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·1· · · · · · ·THE HEARING OFFICER:· Certainly.

·2· · · · · · ·MR. FRICKE:· I would like to call Don Andreas,

·3· ·investigator for the Nevada State Board of Medical

·4· ·Examiners.· He is appearing via videoconference from

·5· ·Las Vegas.

·6· · · · · · ·THE HEARING OFFICER:· Mr. Andreas, can you hear

·7· ·me?

·8· · · · · · ·MR. ANDREAS:· Yes, sir.

·9· · · · · · ·THE HEARING OFFICER:· All right.· I'm sorry that

10· ·you can't see us.· I'm going to have you raise your right

11· ·hand and I'm going to ask our reporter to swear you.

12

13· · · · · · · · · · · · ·DONALD ANDREAS,

14· · · · · called as a witness, having been duly sworn,

15· · · · · · · · · · · testified as follows:

16

17· · · · · · ·THE HEARING OFFICER:· Thank you very much, sir.

18· ·All I will say, Mr. Andreas, is if you have any trouble

19· ·hearing anybody that is speaking up here, please just let us

20· ·know.· All right.· We don't want you to answer what you

21· ·think is Mr. Fricke's question when, in fact, it was

22· ·something else, so if you have any issues with the audio let

23· ·us know so we can adjust the sound.

24· · · · · · ·MR. ANDREAS:· Will do, sir.

25· · · · · · ·THE HEARING OFFICER:· Very good.· Mr. Fricke, go
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·1· ·ahead.

·2· · · · · · ·MR. FRICKE:· Thank you.

·3

·4· · · · · · · · · · · ·DIRECT EXAMINATION

·5· ·BY MR. FRICKE:

·6· · · · Q· · Don, could you state and spell your name for the

·7· ·record, please.

·8· · · · A· · Donald Andreas, D-O-N-A-L-D A-N-D-R-E-A-S.

·9· · · · Q· · Thank you.· Don, what is your current position?

10· · · · A· · I'm a senior investigator out of the Las Vegas

11· ·office.

12· · · · Q· · And you are employed by the Nevada State Board of

13· ·Medical Examiners, correct?

14· · · · A· · Correct.

15· · · · Q· · And how long have you been working as an

16· ·investigator for the Board?

17· · · · A· · Since June 27th, 2005.

18· · · · Q· · So you just had your 15 year anniversary, haven't

19· ·you?

20· · · · A· · Correct.

21· · · · Q· · And, Don, you have been an investigator both in

22· ·Reno and in Las Vegas, correct?

23· · · · A· · Correct.

24· · · · Q· · So you are familiar probably more than anyone with

25· ·the Board's processes and normal business practices; is that
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·1· ·correct?

·2· · · · A· · Yes, sir.

·3· · · · Q· · Okay.· So we are going to review some documents

·4· ·today that have been received as part of our investigation

·5· ·and our normal business processes and, Don, I'm going to ask

·6· ·you to speak to them and speak to your personal experience

·7· ·with them, and so let's begin.

·8· · · · · · ·Could you -- Don has the same binder -- could you

·9· ·turn to Exhibit 2 at Bate stamp, I will be referring to them

10· ·just simply as page, but the Bate stamps are NSBME with

11· ·preceding zeros and then 9.· So we are at page 9.

12· · · · · · ·Don, can you tell me what this document is?

13· · · · A· · It's a Proof of Service of a Complaint and Order

14· ·of Summary Suspension of Melissa Candrilli.

15· · · · Q· · And it is dated December 23rd, 2019, correct?

16· · · · A· · Correct.

17· · · · Q· · And the next page 10, we have a Declaration of

18· ·Service.· What is this document, Don?

19· · · · A· · This is a Declaration of Service regarding this

20· ·case.· Christopher Michael Sartin did an affidavit.· They

21· ·served Ms. Candrilli on December 20th, 2019, at 7:54 PM at

22· ·her address.· He works for --

23· · · · Q· · Was it Reno Carson Messenger Service?

24· · · · A· · There it is at the bottom, Reno Carson Messenger

25· ·Service.
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·1· · · · Q· · Right.· And her address is 

·2· · ; is that correct?

·3· · · · A· · Yes, .

·4· · · · Q· · Yeah.· And you are familiar with that address?

·5· · · · A· · I am.

·6· · · · Q· · Okay.· You have, actually, we will get to that in

·7· ·a minute, but you actually met Ms. Candrilli at that

·8· ·address?

·9· · · · A· · Correct.

10· · · · Q· · Okay.· So if we could turn to Exhibit 3, page 11.

11· ·Don, what is this document?

12· · · · A· · This is to verify credentials for the National

13· ·Board of Respiratory Care.

14· · · · Q· · So this is an online system provided by the NBRC

15· ·for people to log into and verify credentials; is that

16· ·correct?

17· · · · A· · Yes.

18· · · · Q· · And this, was this document acquired through our

19· ·investigation of Ms. Candrilli?

20· · · · A· · Yes, sir.

21· · · · Q· · And it was printed out on June 4th, 2018; is that

22· ·correct?

23· · · · A· · That's correct.

24· · · · Q· · Okay.· And for the record is the NBRC the National

25· ·Board of Respiratory Care?
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·1· · · · A· · Yes.

·2· · · · Q· · Okay.· So is it your, is it your understanding

·3· ·that the NBRC certifies respiratory therapists in their

·4· ·licensure so that they can obtain licenses in respective, in

·5· ·their respective state; is that correct?

·6· · · · A· · That's correct.

·7· · · · Q· · Okay.· And so what does this document show?

·8· · · · A· · So this document shows that for her CRT, certified

·9· ·respiratory therapist license, her credentials were valid

10· ·through May 31st, 2018, and for RRT, respiratory therapist,

11· ·through May 31st, 2018.

12· · · · Q· · So based on this, this indicates to you that

13· ·Ms. Candrilli's license, her certification I should say,

14· ·expired on May 31st, 2018, and at the time this document was

15· ·created her license had, her certification had expired; is

16· ·that correct?

17· · · · A· · That's correct.

18· · · · Q· · I direct your attention to Exhibit 4, page 12.

19· ·Actually, let's go a little bit out of order to Exhibit 5,

20· ·please, page 13.· You have, again, just for the record, Don,

21· ·you have reviewed all of these documents and are familiar

22· ·with them; is that right?

23· · · · A· · I did, yes, sir.

24· · · · Q· · Okay.· So can you tell me what is found on page

25· ·13?
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·1· · · · A· · So this is an e-mail chain from Tara Bailey,

·2· ·Licensing Administrative Assistant, an e-mail to Melissa

·3· ·Candrilli stating that this is a courtesy to remind you that

·4· ·your National Board of Respiratory Care certification is due

·5· ·to expire May 31st, 2018, and then per NAC if a licensee

·6· ·loses certification her license will be automatically

·7· ·suspended by the Board.

·8· · · · Q· · Thank you, Don.· So you know that Tara Bailey is

·9· ·an employee of the Board?

10· · · · A· · Yes, sir.

11· · · · Q· · Yeah.· So Ms. Bailey was a Licensing

12· ·Administrative Assistant.· She is now a Licensing

13· ·Specialist; is that correct?

14· · · · A· · I believe so.

15· · · · Q· · So we can note the e-mail is

16· .· Is it your understanding that

17· ·is and has been Ms. Candrilli's e-mail address?

18· · · · A· · Yes, sir.

19· · · · Q· · Okay.· And so that e-mail, that first e-mail from

20· ·Ms. Bailey was sent on May 8th, 2018, at 2:00 PM; is that

21· ·correct?

22· · · · A· · Correct.

23· · · · Q· · And then what happens according to this document?

24· · · · A· · And so then Tara Bailey then sent another e-mail

25· ·to Ms. Candrilli at the same Yahoo address saying, "Hello,
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·1· ·Ms. Candrilli.· The Board mailed you the attached Order of

·2· ·Suspension, but it was returned to our office.· In addition

·3· ·to the Order of Suspension, I have attached a change of

·4· ·address form for you to complete and return to the Board if

·5· ·Pecos Park Avenue is no longer a good mailing address for

·6· ·you."

·7· · · · Q· · And that was on, and sorry to cut you off, Don,

·8· ·and the attachments that are referenced here are an Order of

·9· ·Suspension pdf, an envelope pdf, and change of address pdf.

10· · · · · · ·If we turn to page 14, that's the same Order of

11· ·Suspension that was, that is referenced in Exhibit 4 we will

12· ·get to in a second.· Page 15 is the certified mail envelope

13· ·being returned to our office.

14· · · · · · ·And, Don, and just for clarity, is it your

15· ·understanding that Ms. Candrilli owned this house or resided

16· ·at this house at ?

17· · · · A· · Yes.

18· · · · Q· · And if you turn to page 16, there is a USPS

19· ·tracking.· And so, Don, is it your understanding that

20· ·Ms. Candrilli was mailed this Order of Summary Suspension

21· ·via certified mailed and it was returned to our office on or

22· ·about July 2nd, 2018?

23· · · · A· · That's correct.

24· · · · Q· · And if we turn back to page 12, Exhibit 4, there

25· ·is that Order of Suspension.· Don, NAC Section 630.535, as
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·1· ·an investigator for the Board for 15 years, what is the

·2· ·process that occurs once a respiratory therapist

·3· ·certification expires without making, you know, arrangements

·4· ·with the Board?

·5· · · · A· · So it's protocol that we have to suspend their

·6· ·respiratory therapist license.

·7· · · · Q· · Right.· And that's by regulation.· We don't have

·8· ·any discretion in that matter.· It's automatic and we, do

·9· ·we -- so we prepare an order and then we send it to the

10· ·respiratory therapist?

11· · · · A· · Yes, sir.· We send and/or hand deliver it

12· ·depending on the situation.

13· · · · Q· · Thank you.· Let's move forward to Exhibit 6, page

14· ·18.· What is this document, Don?

15· · · · A· · So this is an Order of Reinstatement of License to

16· ·Practice Respiratory Therapy -- Respiratory Care.

17· · · · Q· · And so it's dated June 26, 2019?

18· · · · A· · That's correct.

19· · · · Q· · So it would be your understanding that from the

20· ·time of the Order of Suspension, which was June 6, 2018,

21· ·through June 26, 2019, Ms. Candrilli did not have a license

22· ·to practice respiratory care; is that correct?

23· · · · A· · That's correct.

24· · · · Q· · Okay.· And I will turn the page to page 19.· What

25· ·is this, Don?
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·1· · · · A· · This is a fax from Melissa Candrilli to Licensing

·2· ·Specialist Kristi Stewart.· Good morning, here is the

·3· ·certification, so that was a fax cover sheet.

·4· · · · Q· · So it's your, so we note the

·5·  address and the fax cover

·6· ·transmittal reflects it was June 26, 2019 at 9:02 AM, and so

·7· ·that's the self same e-mail address that was on the

·8· ·correspondence from Ms. Bailey; is that correct?

·9· · · · A· · Correct.

10· · · · Q· · And so this is a, purports to be a fax from

11· ·Ms. Candrilli to the Licensing Specialist assigned to her

12· ·case, at the time Kristi Stewart, containing on page 20,

13· ·what does this look like to you, Don?

14· · · · A· · This is a document from the practitioner portal

15· ·for NBRC stating that Ms. Melissa Candrilli has earned her

16· ·credentials and her respiratory therapist license now

17· ·expires May 31st, 2023.

18· · · · Q· · So this would be the same portal that was

19· ·referenced in Exhibit 3; is that correct?

20· · · · A· · That's correct.

21· · · · Q· · So there was about a year period where she didn't

22· ·have a license, but she communicated with the Board that she

23· ·had renewed her certification and we lifted the Order of

24· ·Suspension; is that correct?

25· · · · A· · That's correct.
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·1· · · · Q· · Okay.· And that, again, would be our regular

·2· ·process here at the Board?

·3· · · · A· · Yes, sir.

·4· · · · Q· · Okay.· If we could turn to Exhibit 7 at page 21.

·5· ·What is this, Don?

·6· · · · A· · This is an allegation letter sent to Melissa

·7· ·Candrilli, basically, you know, stating the allegations that

·8· ·were brought to us during the complaint and also during the

·9· ·allegation and some questions that we asked her to respond

10· ·to.

11· · · · Q· · And there is, there is a reference in point 1

12· ·about, it is alleged that there was some sort of incident at

13· ·Complex Care Hospital at Tenaya.· We will get to that in a

14· ·second, but can you just briefly tell us, Don, what is, what

15· ·is an allegation letter and why do we send it out?

16· · · · A· · So at the time of the investigation it's an

17· ·allegation, so we are informing them of what the allegations

18· ·are and what we were informed of, and we are asking them to

19· ·respond to provide their side of the story.

20· · · · Q· · Okay.· And so why, and why would that be important

21· ·to us?

22· · · · A· · Well, due process.· I mean, you can't just go off

23· ·the allegation.· We want to hear from them and find out

24· ·their side of the facts.

25· · · · Q· · And so we will also discuss this in a moment.· So
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·1· ·your job as an investigator, is it to prepare cases and who

·2· ·do you present them to?

·3· · · · A· · So once it's finalized, we present it to the

·4· ·Investigative Committee.

·5· · · · Q· · And the Investigative Committee meets how often?

·6· · · · A· · Quarterly, four times a year.

·7· · · · Q· · Okay.· And so as an investigator, you investigate

·8· ·cases, gather evidence, and present them to the

·9· ·Investigative Committee on a quarterly basis, correct?

10· · · · A· · Correct.

11· · · · Q· · And do you -- and, basically, you take direction

12· ·from the Investigative Committee; is that right?

13· · · · A· · Yes.

14· · · · Q· · So we note that there are two addresses at the top

15· ·of this letter.· One is  and the

16· ·second address is .· And is it

17· ·your understanding, Don, that 

18· ·was the official address that Ms. Candrilli had on file with

19· ·the Board; is that correct?

20· · · · A· · Yes, sir.

21· · · · Q· · And this  was an address

22· ·that was obtained by Mollie Miller, the Deputy Chief of

23· ·Investigations, in investigating this case as being a

24· ·property that Ms. Candrilli either owned or resided at.· I'm

25· ·sorry that's a compound question, but is that your
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·1· ·understanding?

·2· · · · A· · That is my understanding.

·3· · · · Q· · Okay.· And so this allegation, let's talk about

·4· ·the allegations briefly.· What is the, you don't have to

·5· ·read it, but if you could summarize what is the, because the

·6· ·document speaks for itself, what is the allegations roughly?

·7· · · · A· · Basically, that she was employed at Complex Care

·8· ·Hospital at Tenaya and she was under the influence of

·9· ·alcohol while she was working.

10· · · · Q· · And --

11· · · · A· · And she may have been practicing respiratory care

12· ·with a suspended license.

13· · · · Q· · Okay.· Thank you.· And on page 22 there are some

14· ·questions that Ms. Candrilli is asked to provide a specific

15· ·response to.

16· · · · A· · That's correct.

17· · · · Q· · Can you review them very quickly?

18· · · · A· · "Please indicate if you provided any respiratory

19· ·care to patients on January 21st, 2019, before you were

20· ·requested to perform a breathalyzer test.· If so, please

21· ·indicate how many patients you provided respiratory care

22· ·to."

23· · · · · · ·"Please indicate if you have ever enrolled in a

24· ·substance abuse treatment program.· If so, please provide

25· ·your dates of enrollment, the name and location of the
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·1· ·treatment program."

·2· · · · · · ·"Please provide a list of all of your places of

·3· ·employment since June 6, 2018 where you were required to

·4· ·possess an active Practitioner of Respiratory Care license

·5· ·as a condition of employment."

·6· · · · Q· · Thank you.

·7· · · · A· · "Please include who your employers were on June 6,

·8· ·2018."

·9· · · · Q· · So as an investigator for the Board, would you say

10· ·that public protection is your number one focus as an

11· ·investigator?

12· · · · A· · Absolutely.

13· · · · Q· · And so why would it be important that we know

14· ·whether Ms. Candrilli provided any respiratory care to

15· ·patients on January 21st before she was requested to perform

16· ·a breathalyzer?

17· · · · A· · So we would want to know how many patients she saw

18· ·when she may have been intoxicated at the time; therefore,

19· ·we could obtain the patient records to see how, what kind of

20· ·care was provided.· Was it substandard, malpractice, below

21· ·standard?

22· · · · Q· · All right.· And why would it be important for us

23· ·to know all of the places where Ms. Candrilli worked after

24· ·June 6, 2018?

25· · · · A· · I would want to know when, you know, if she didn't

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 28
·1· ·have -- Her license wasn't active, so we wanted to know

·2· ·where she was working and, you know, obtain documentation

·3· ·from anyplace that she may have been working without a

·4· ·license.

·5· · · · Q· · Thank you.· So on page 23 of that same exhibit,

·6· ·there is a, this is a -- what is this document, Don?

·7· · · · A· · This is from the United States Postal Service.

·8· ·It's a letter basically stating the proof of delivery of

·9· ·that, of the letter we just spoke about.

10· · · · Q· · And this would be to the proof of delivery to the

11· ·North Las Vegas address on March 14th, sorry, March 11th,

12· ·and on page 24 this document was delivered.· It would be

13· ·your understanding, Don, that this document was delivered at

14· ·1:36 PM on March 11th, 2019, to the  address in

15· ; is that correct?

16· · · · A· · I believe this one was .

17· · · · Q· · Oh, .· So that was delivered at .

18· ·Thank you for correcting me.· And then we have another

19· ·letter that was sent to the  address.· Is this the

20· ·same letter on page 25 and 26?

21· · · · A· · Yes, it is.

22· · · · Q· · And then we have a separate delivery.· Let's see.

23· · · · A· · That's correct.

24· · · · Q· · These look awfully a lot alike.

25· · · · · · ·THE HEARING OFFICER:· They do.
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·1· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Same time.· I would say there is a

·2· ·duplicate.

·3· · · · · · ·MR. FRICKE:· Yeah, this may be.· So we will note

·4· ·that for the record that one of these is not what they

·5· ·purport to be, Mr. Woodman.· But the, but Ms. Candrilli had

·6· ·this allegation letter confirmed to one of these addresses,

·7· ·at least that's what this certification would indicate.

·8· · · · · · ·THE HEARING OFFICER:· And what I have gathered

·9· ·thus far is that there was one address that she had

10· ·essentially registered with the Board as her official

11· ·address of record and there was another address she was

12· ·using where she was actually living, so whether it went to

13· ·either one should suffice.

14· · · · · · ·MR. FRICKE:· Yeah.· Again, for the record, I will

15· ·offer that  is the address, at

16· ·least since November 9th of 2015 was the address that she

17· ·had on record with the Board, and we can talk about that a

18· ·little bit more on Exhibit 8, page 29.

19· ·BY MR. FRICKE:

20· · · · Q· · Don, what is this document?

21· · · · A· · This is a second request for a response to the

22· ·allegations in the letter.

23· · · · Q· · Okay.· And although this isn't necessarily to be

24· ·accepted as proof of the matter asserted, but there is a

25· ·note here from the, if you look at the bottom right-hand
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·1· ·corner of this note, there is some handwritten notes here.

·2· ·What does this say, Don, at the bottom?

·3· · · · A· · So on May 1st, 2019, it says received letter

·4· ·returned to sender by USPS and then on July 3rd, 2019, a

·5· ·revised allegation letter mailed.

·6· · · · Q· · And would you understand that this is Mollie

·7· ·Miller's handwriting?

·8· · · · A· · Yes.· It looks like Mollie's, yes.

·9· · · · Q· · Okay.· And so there would be a second request and

10· ·on page 31 a certified mail envelope.· What does this

11· ·document indicate to you?

12· · · · A· · So this was a second request that went to the

13· ·  in  and it was return to

14· ·sender, meaning it was returned back to us.

15· · · · Q· · Thank you.· All right.· Exhibit 9, page 32, Don,

16· ·what are we looking at here?

17· · · · A· · So this is an Order to Produce a Response.

18· ·Basically, what it is is Mollie at the time of the IC was

19· ·ordering Melissa Candrilli to provide a response to the

20· ·original allegation letter.

21· · · · Q· · And this is page 33.· It's dated April 9th, 2019;

22· ·is that right?

23· · · · A· · That's correct.

24· · · · Q· · So why generally does the Board, does the

25· ·Investigative Committee of the Board issue such an order?
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·1· · · · A· · So if they do not respond, and when I say they,

·2· ·the respondent in this case Melissa doesn't respond to the

·3· ·allegations, we don't have her side of the story, her

·4· ·response, so we basically are demanding her, telling her you

·5· ·need to respond to these allegations.

·6· · · · Q· · Okay.· And in your experience as an investigator,

·7· ·Don, is it important in order to get to the truth of the

·8· ·matter to have both sides of the story?

·9· · · · A· · Oh, absolutely.· I mean, this is her time and I

10· ·always tell them it's their time to shine to, you know, give

11· ·us her side.

12· · · · Q· · Right.

13· · · · A· · Because otherwise we only have the one side.

14· · · · Q· · And it's, is it your experience that also as a

15· ·professional it's important in your dealings with the Board

16· ·to be communicating with Board staff?· Would that be your

17· ·impression?

18· · · · A· · Oh, absolutely.

19· · · · Q· · We will move forward to Exhibit 10, page 34.· Don,

20· ·what are we looking at here?

21· · · · A· · So this is a revised allegation letter.

22· ·Basically, it's just a lot of times when you are doing an

23· ·investigation additional allegations come up, additional

24· ·questions, and so it's just basically the same allegation

25· ·letter with a little more questions and allegations to it.
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·1· · · · Q· · So it would be your understanding that the staff

·2· ·here at the Board, investigative staff became aware of

·3· ·issues regarding her maintaining her address and so they

·4· ·sent her a revised letter, allegation letter, on July 3rd,

·5· ·2019; is that correct?

·6· · · · A· · Yes.· And during obviously it appears to be that

·7· ·Mollie noticed that she failed to report this on her 2017

·8· ·and 2019 licensing renewal, and when I say that, the

·9· ·investigation at Complex Care where she was terminated.

10· · · · Q· · Okay.· Great.· So you are referring first, so in

11· ·paragraphs 5 and 6 of the allegations there is a reference

12· ·to the Order of Suspension being returned, mailed to her

13· ·address and returned unclaimed.· The Board's Order of

14· ·Suspension being e-mailed to her address that she has

15· ·already verified in a prior correspondence by fax was her

16· ·e-mail address.· And then paragraph 10 on page 35, that you

17· ·failed to report on your 2019 Board renewal that --

18· · · · A· · Yes.

19· · · · Q· · -- since your last renewal, you had been under

20· ·investigation by Complex Care at Tenaya for allegations of

21· ·being under the influence of alcohol during work hours.· Are

22· ·those the items you are referring to as being new?

23· · · · A· · Yes, sir.

24· · · · Q· · Okay.· Thank you.· Okay.· Don, why do we ask the

25· ·question on a license renewal about whether someone has been
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·1· ·under investigation by a hospital that employs them?· Why do

·2· ·we ask that question?

·3· · · · A· · I think it boils down to patient safety.· You

·4· ·know, we want to know were there any issues before we

·5· ·re-license you.· We want to be honest with each other.

·6· · · · Q· · Right.· And so explain, if you could just for the

·7· ·record very briefly, the Board's operations, you know, the

·8· ·licensees of the Board are not employees of the Board; is

·9· ·that right?

10· · · · A· · Correct.

11· · · · Q· · And so we depend upon and we don't have regular

12· ·daily communications with our licensees; is that right?

13· · · · A· · That's correct.

14· · · · Q· · And you don't, Don, as an investigator just

15· ·regularly inquire with licensees how they are doing and

16· ·whether they are facing any issues.· You don't do that,

17· ·right?

18· · · · A· · We do not.

19· · · · Q· · So would you say as an investigator it's very

20· ·important for the Board to conduct its business that

21· ·licensees report to us the information that they are

22· ·required to report to us?· For example, that they have been

23· ·under investigation by their employer for a violation of

24· ·some kind of hospital policy, is that important to us?

25· · · · A· · Absolutely.
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·1· · · · Q· · Okay.· If we could turn to Exhibit 11 at page 37.

·2· ·What is this, Don?

·3· · · · A· · This is a final request for the response to this

·4· ·investigation, the allegation letter.

·5· · · · Q· · Thank you.· And so there is on page 38 an Order to

·6· ·Produce Response.· This time it references within 10 days of

·7· ·service and this is dated July 26, 2019.

·8· · · · · · ·Don, why would we be sending this to

·9· ·Ms. Candrilli?

10· · · · A· · This is, you know, once again a document, you

11· ·know, by the Investigative Committee that she needs to

12· ·respond to the allegations that were provided to her.

13· · · · Q· · Again, because we want to know what she has to say

14· ·about the allegations that were presented in the allegation

15· ·letter, correct?

16· · · · A· · That is correct.

17· · · · Q· · So if we turn to Exhibit 12 at page 40, you may

18· ·recognize your name on here, Don.· What is this document?

19· · · · A· · So this was an Affidavit of Service.· Do you want

20· ·me to elaborate?

21· · · · Q· · Go ahead.· What is it, Don?

22· · · · A· · So at the time Mollie Miller asked Kim Friedman,

23· ·Senior Investigator, to go to Melissa Candrilli's house and

24· ·serve the Order to Produce Response, Final Request and

25· ·Allegation Letter.
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·1· · · · Q· · Okay.· And so you served Ms. Candrilli with the

·2· ·Order to Produce Response, Final Request and Allegation

·3· ·Letter on July 26, 2019?

·4· · · · A· · Correct.

·5· · · · Q· · And can you tell me about that day?· So you said

·6· ·you were with Kim, and so what did you guys do that day?

·7· · · · A· · So we knocked on her door, and she actually opened

·8· ·the door very quickly, and I explained who we were, showed

·9· ·her identification, and then kind of just told her what I

10· ·was serving her, and kind of just tried to explain to her,

11· ·hey, you know, by you not responding you are potentially

12· ·causing yourself more harm in the long run.

13· · · · · · ·We need to hear your side of the story, you know.

14· ·You are not responding to a Board order, which is a

15· ·violation of statute of the NRS, so I just calmly told her

16· ·it would be in her best interest if she would respond

17· ·properly, and she said she would.

18· · · · Q· · Okay.· Anything else?· What else happened that

19· ·day?

20· · · · A· · So when I was there, she looked disheveled,

21· ·flustered, flushed, and she told me that she walked

22· ·approximately 12 to 15 miles, and I took, I took interest in

23· ·that.· So after we departed, I contacted Mollie Miller,

24· ·Deputy Chief of Investigations, and I gave her my, you know,

25· ·professional opinion.· I said I think something happened
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·1· ·with Melissa Candrilli.· I think she just got out of jail.

·2· · · · · · ·I wasn't, I didn't know that.· Just my suspicion

·3· ·of her appearance and the fact that she just told me she

·4· ·walked 12 to 15 miles, I just had an inkling that she just

·5· ·got out of jail.

·6· · · · Q· · Yeah.· So it was a hunch that she had been

·7· ·recently released from custody; is that correct?

·8· · · · A· · Yeah, that was what my hunch was.

·9· · · · Q· · So turn to Exhibit 13, page 41.· So, Don, to go

10· ·back to that, when you provided that order to produce

11· ·records and that final notice on July 26 did you provide

12· ·Ms. Miller's business card to Ms. Candrilli?

13· · · · A· · I did.

14· · · · Q· · And so that's generally either stapled or paper

15· ·clipped to the envelope that you hand her or in it?

16· · · · A· · Usually, yeah, usually paper clipped.

17· · · · Q· · Okay.· And so what is this document on page 41?

18· · · · A· · So this is a fax that is to Mollie Miller from

19· ·Melissa Candrilli with a picture or a photocopy of Mollie

20· ·Miller's business card, and it was received in our office,

21· ·being the Reno State Medical Board's Office, on August 5th,

22· ·2019 from a UPS store from Melissa.

23· · · · Q· · All right.· On page 42, I'm going to let this

24· ·document speak for itself, but could you read, Don, the

25· ·third paragraph on page 42.
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·1· · · · A· · "I was suspended/released from Complex Care

·2· ·Hospital for being disoriented and showing symptoms of being

·3· ·under the influence of medication and/or alcohol."

·4· · · · Q· · Okay.· So as an investigator of the Board, what do

·5· ·you take this to mean?

·6· · · · A· · So I take it to mean that, you know, she was under

·7· ·the influence while she was at work.

·8· · · · Q· · Or would you say that Ms. Candrilli is

·9· ·acknowledging that she was released from Complex Care for

10· ·being disoriented and --

11· · · · A· · Yes.

12· · · · Q· · Okay.· Thank you.· And that acknowledgment came,

13· ·again, August 5th, 2019; is that correct?

14· · · · A· · Yes.· That's the received stamp in the Reno

15· ·office, yes.

16· · · · Q· · Thank you.· And if we -- and with that fax was

17· ·included on page 44 a copy of the allegation letter?

18· · · · A· · The first page.

19· · · · Q· · That's right.· And then on page 45, what is this,

20· ·Don?

21· · · · A· · It's a second fax that was sent from the same

22· ·store from Melissa on the next day, August 6th, 2019.

23· · · · Q· · And it looks like she changed the date here, or

24· ·maybe it was the same fax and yet it was just sort of

25· ·delayed in coming through.· It's hard to say, but I won't
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·1· ·ask you to testify on that, Don, about how good our fax

·2· ·machine works, but on page 46, what is that document?

·3· · · · A· · So it states it's a Mental Health Suite -

·4· ·Treatment Plan for Melissa Candrilli, so from reading this

·5· ·it appears that she was involuntarily locked up.· Basically,

·6· ·Patient's Restrictions:· Locked Ward.· Receiving inpatient

·7· ·care.

·8· · · · Q· · So is it your understanding that whether she

·9· ·submitted herself to this inpatient care or whether she was

10· ·referred by some authority, she was receiving inpatient care

11· ·for what is your understanding?

12· · · · A· · So yeah.

13· · · · Q· · What was she receiving care for?

14· · · · A· · So it states substance abuse/dependence relapse.

15· · · · Q· · And what is, right below that it says, "Patient's

16· ·Perception of Needs and Preferences:· ETOH."· What does that

17· ·mean to you?

18· · · · A· · That means alcohol to me.

19· · · · Q· · Okay.· And so was it your understanding that she

20· ·was in inpatient treatment in a locked ward for alcohol

21· ·abuse by her own perception of her own needs; is that

22· ·correct?

23· · · · A· · That's correct.

24· · · · Q· · All right.· If we turn to Exhibit 14, page 47,

25· ·this is a rather lengthy exhibit, but 47 through 69 we have
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·1· ·documents that purport to be from Complex Care at Tenaya.

·2· ·Don, what are these documents?

·3· · · · A· · So this looks like, it's a job offer.· They are

·4· ·offering her a position upon completion of a successful

·5· ·background check and drug screening --

·6· · · · Q· · Right.

·7· · · · A· · -- at Complex Care Hospital.

·8· · · · Q· · So all of these documents, page 47 through 69,

·9· ·Don, is it your understanding that we received these from

10· ·Complex Care at Tenaya?

11· · · · A· · Yes.

12· · · · Q· · And we received that as part of our investigation

13· ·of the incidents with Ms. Candrilli; is that right?

14· · · · A· · That's correct.

15· · · · Q· · Okay.· And so I'm going to just go through a

16· ·couple items and I will let the rest of the documents speak

17· ·for themselves.· So is your understanding based on this,

18· ·Don, that Ms. Candrilli received a job offer to work there

19· ·sometime on or around, let's see, maybe she applied for the

20· ·job on September 7th, 2018?

21· · · · A· · It looks like the job offer was January 8, 2019.

22· · · · Q· · Yeah.· So she was, on page 51 she was offered a

23· ·job on January 8th, 2019; is that right?

24· · · · A· · That's correct.

25· · · · Q· · And on page 53, Drug-Free Workplace Policy
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·1· ·Acknowledgment.· What is that, Don?

·2· · · · A· · So it's a document from Complex Care acknowledging

·3· ·that you received a Drug-Free Workplace Policy and

·4· ·understand the purpose of the policy is to maintain a safe,

·5· ·drug and alcohol-free environment for all employees and a

·6· ·safe treatment environment for patients.

·7· · · · Q· · Thank you.· And page 54, what is this, Don?

·8· · · · A· · So this is a document where there is kind of like

·9· ·a checklist.· If you see that it appears that she, when I

10· ·say she I mean Melissa, there was a Fitness for Duty/

11· ·Reasonable Suspicion Testing Checklist.

12· · · · Q· · So this comes from the Supervisor Lloyd Nelson; is

13· ·that correct?

14· · · · A· · Correct.

15· · · · Q· · So is it your understanding that Mr. Nelson

16· ·observed Ms. Candrilli to be reasonably suspicious of being

17· ·under the influence of some kind of alcohol or drug; is that

18· ·correct?

19· · · · A· · Yes.· Yes, sir.

20· · · · Q· · All right.· And if we turn to page 56, no doubt

21· ·you have seen these documents before, right, Don?

22· · · · A· · Yes.

23· · · · Q· · So what is this form?

24· · · · A· · So this is a form that's completed by an alcohol

25· ·technician, and they took a breathalyzer twice and the
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·1· ·breathalyzer test came back the first one at .148 and then

·2· ·approximately 16 minutes later, 15, 16 minutes later it came

·3· ·back at .181.

·4· · · · Q· · All right.· So, Don, this is on the same date that

·5· ·the checklist from Mr. Nelson was completed; is that

·6· ·correct?

·7· · · · A· · Yes, January 21st, 2019.

·8· · · · Q· · Okay.· So, Don, what is, what is the legal limit

·9· ·for blood alcohol content to operate a vehicle in the State

10· ·of Nevada?

11· · · · A· · .08.

12· · · · Q· · Okay.· And you, as an investigator for the Board,

13· ·you would consider someone over that limit to be impaired;

14· ·is that correct?

15· · · · A· · Yes.

16· · · · Q· · So based upon this, Don, the results -- and so

17· ·here is an interesting thing.· The first result was .148 and

18· ·the second result was .181.· Does anything strike you about

19· ·that, Don?

20· · · · A· · Well, it significantly went up.

21· · · · Q· · So would that indicate that she actually probably

22· ·has alcohol in her stomach at that point and it was

23· ·perfusing into her blood?· Would that be a fair

24· ·characterization of what is occurring here?

25· · · · A· · I would say fair.
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·1· · · · Q· · Okay.· So when you --

·2· · · · · · ·THE HEARING OFFICER:· I just want to interrupt

·3· ·with a quick question.· Mr. Andreas, this is Charles

·4· ·Woodman, the Hearing Officer.· Do you have any idea, I'm

·5· ·just curious, whether that's a preliminary breath test that

·6· ·they are giving her or an evidentiary test; do you know?

·7· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· You know, I do not.· I do not, sir.

·8· · · · · · ·THE HEARING OFFICER:· All good.· No worries.

·9· · · · · · ·Go ahead.

10· · · · · · ·MR. FRICKE:· But I will note for the record that

11· ·although the document speaks to this, there is a chain of

12· ·custody statement and official lab results to follow.

13· · · · · · ·THE HEARING OFFICER:· Very good.

14· · · · · · ·MR. FRICKE:· And this is given under, in the form

15· ·of an affidavit.

16· ·BY MR. FRICKE:

17· · · · Q· · And so would you consider, Don, as an investigator

18· ·for the Board somebody with a blood alcohol level of .181 to

19· ·be impaired?

20· · · · A· · Yes, sir.

21· · · · Q· · Okay.· So I will submit for the record that there

22· ·are other statements ostensibly from other employees of

23· ·Complex Care and we will let them speak for themselves

24· ·about that incident.

25· · · · · · ·Exhibit 15, page 70.
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·1· · · · A· · Okay.

·2· · · · Q· · Don, what are we looking at here?

·3· · · · A· · So this is a licensing renewal for respiratory

·4· ·therapist for the year of 2019 to 2021.

·5· · · · Q· · And this is from Ms. Candrilli?

·6· · · · A· · That's correct.

·7· · · · Q· · And so it has her License Number RC1511 at the

·8· ·top.· And so, Don, we spoke to this before.· What do we do,

·9· ·what does the Board do and what does a licensee do during

10· ·the license renewal process?

11· · · · A· · So they are asked, you know, a multitude of

12· ·questions yes or no.

13· · · · Q· · And why do we ask these types of questions?

14· · · · A· · You know, I'm going to go back to patient safety.

15· · · · Q· · So would you say that we are trying to determine

16· ·whether there are concerns about incidents or incidents that

17· ·the Board ought to investigate to assure the fitness for

18· ·practice and the continued competency of a licensee, would

19· ·that be a fair characterization?

20· · · · A· · That would be correct, yes.

21· · · · Q· · Okay.· And in your 15 years as an investigator,

22· ·Don, how many license renewal applications have you looked

23· ·at?

24· · · · A· · Oh, hundreds.· Hundreds, if not thousands.

25· · · · Q· · So you are very familiar with all of these
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·1· ·questions?

·2· · · · A· · I am.

·3· · · · Q· · The third question from the top -- And so, again,

·4· ·it's your understanding that the licensee completes this

·5· ·renewal application, correct?

·6· · · · A· · That's correct.

·7· · · · Q· · So the third question from the top, can you read

·8· ·that question for me?

·9· · · · A· · "If you use chemical substances, does your use in

10· ·any way impair or limit your ability to practice respiratory

11· ·care services with reasonable skill and safety?"

12· · · · Q· · And what is Ms. Candrilli's answer?

13· · · · A· · "No."

14· · · · Q· · And this, and when was this renewal application

15· ·received by the Board?

16· · · · A· · June 28, 2019.

17· · · · Q· · Okay.· And that would be after, for the record,

18· ·after these incidents at Tenaya had already occurred; is

19· ·that correct?

20· · · · A· · That's correct.

21· · · · Q· · Okay.· The next page, page 71, let me ask this

22· ·question for comparison, the third from the top, can you

23· ·read that question?

24· · · · A· · "Have you had a certificate or license to provide

25· ·respiratory care services in any other healing art revoked,
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·1· ·suspended, limited or restricted in any state, country or

·2· ·U.S. territory?"

·3· · · · Q· · And what was her answer?

·4· · · · A· · "Yes."

·5· · · · Q· · So it would indicate at least that she, that this

·6· ·is a correct answer; is that right?

·7· · · · A· · Yes, sir.

·8· · · · Q· · Because as we have already established,

·9· ·Ms. Candrilli had her license suspended due to the

10· ·expiration of her certification; is that right?

11· · · · A· · Correct.

12· · · · Q· · Okay.· If we can go down to the second from the

13· ·bottom, can you read that question?

14· · · · A· · "Have you had your registration/certification

15· ·revoked, suspended and/or limited by the National Board for

16· ·Respiratory Care?"

17· · · · Q· · So, again, what did she answer?

18· · · · A· · "Yes."

19· · · · Q· · Okay.· So that would be a correct answer; is that

20· ·right?

21· · · · A· · Yes.

22· · · · Q· · But if you go one above that, and I will just read

23· ·it for you, "Have you been asked to respond to," I will

24· ·eliminate the letters, "have you been asked to respond to an

25· ·investigation, notified that you were under investigation
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·1· ·for, investigated for, charged with, or convicted of any

·2· ·violation of a statute, rule or regulation governing your

·3· ·practice as a practitioner of respiratory care by any

·4· ·medical licensing board, hospital, medical society,

·5· ·governmental entity or agency other than the Nevada State

·6· ·Board of Medical Examiners?"

·7· · · · · · ·And, Don, what was her answer to that question?

·8· · · · A· · "No."· She answered it negatively.

·9· · · · Q· · So it would be your understanding that that would

10· ·be a lie?

11· · · · A· · Yes.

12· · · · Q· · And so what is the purpose of, again, what is the

13· ·purpose of asking this, as an investigator for the Board why

14· ·do you want to know whether a licensee has been under

15· ·investigation, asked to respond to an investigation or

16· ·notified they were under an investigation by a hospital?

17· ·Why would you want to know that?

18· · · · A· · We would want to know what allegations they were,

19· ·why, what transpired, what was the outcome, was there any

20· ·patient harm.

21· · · · Q· · Thank you.

22· · · · A· · Is there a substance abuse problem.

23· · · · Q· · Right.· And so based upon the fact that

24· ·Ms. Candrilli by her own admission was suspended and revoked

25· ·by Tenaya that would be a false statement to your mind; is
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·1· ·that correct?

·2· · · · A· · She was terminated, yes.

·3· · · · Q· · Yeah.· If we can turn to Exhibit 16 at page 73, a

·4· ·document with a case number at the top, City of North

·5· ·Las Vegas versus Candrilli, Melissa T.· Don, what is this

·6· ·document?

·7· · · · A· · So this is a, it's a court document stating an

·8· ·arrest for misdemeanor false statement to/obstruct public

·9· ·officer for Melissa Candrilli.

10· · · · Q· · Okay.· And if I direct your attention to page 74

11· ·at the middle, a date showing 7-25-2019, "Defendant released

12· ·from detention."· Don, so this is a docket sheet from the

13· ·City of North Las Vegas Court.· What would you indicate,

14· ·what does this mean to you?

15· · · · A· · It means to me she was released July 25th, 2019,

16· ·and Kim Friedman, Investigator, and myself visited

17· ·Ms. Candrilli on July 26, 2019, where we served her the

18· ·documents and the allegation letter, and we suspected that

19· ·she might have just been released from custody from jail.

20· · · · Q· · So I just wanted to make it, not to be flippant,

21· ·but I just wanted to make it for the record that Don Andreas

22· ·has good hunches.

23· · · · · · ·Would this document indicate to you that she was

24· ·arrested the day before and then released on the 25th, and

25· ·then just to clarify the record you and Ms. Friedman, who we
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·1· ·will note for the record has actually entered the conference

·2· ·facility in Las Vegas and she is now on camera, that you saw

·3· ·Ms. Candrilli the very next day and served her with the

·4· ·documents that we referred to previously; is that right?

·5· · · · A· · That's correct.

·6· · · · Q· · Okay.· And just one more aspect to explore, page

·7· ·76 of the same exhibit.· I will offer that this is a, looks

·8· ·like a police report.· Don, what does this say here?  I

·9· ·should say what does this indicate to you?

10· · · · A· · So it indicates to me that Melissa Candrilli was

11· ·arrested on July 24th, 2019, for false statement to/obstruct

12· ·a public officer and domestic violence.

13· · · · Q· · And that's indicated at the bottom of that page.

14· ·Although she was not charged with domestic violence, would

15· ·you say that this is the officer characterizing the incident

16· ·as a domestic violence incident?

17· · · · A· · Yes, sir.

18· · · · Q· · Okay.· And on page 77, we see also a police report

19· ·with a suspect name of Walton, Johnny Lee.· Don, are you

20· ·familiar with who Johnny Lee Walton is?

21· · · · A· · I am.

22· · · · Q· · Have you met Mr. Walton?

23· · · · A· · I have, twice.

24· · · · Q· · When was the first time you met Mr. Walton?

25· · · · A· · The first time I met him I was with Investigator
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·1· ·Kim Friedman and myself at the North Las Vegas courthouse,

·2· ·and we served Ms. Candrilli with some documents and he was

·3· ·with her present and started asking me some questions.

·4· · · · Q· · And --

·5· · · · A· · That was the first time.

·6· · · · Q· · So we will get to that in a moment, but your

·7· ·understanding is you were serving Ms. Candrilli an order to

·8· ·appear before the Investigative Committee; is that right?

·9· · · · A· · That's correct.

10· · · · Q· · All right.· And so can you just briefly describe

11· ·your interaction with Mr. Walton?

12· · · · A· · It just, he was, you know, just came on pretty

13· ·strong like he didn't know who I was and he started asking

14· ·questions.· I can't recall exactly, but he kept hammering

15· ·Kim and I to the point where we just kind of just walked

16· ·away from him.· I said we served the document, she needs to

17· ·appear, and that was it.

18· · · · Q· · Okay.· And so can you -- so previously you

19· ·testified that the Investigative Committee meets quarterly;

20· ·is that correct?

21· · · · A· · Correct.

22· · · · Q· · And so in the summer of 2019, what is your, what

23· ·is your understanding that was your instructions from the

24· ·Investigative Committee with respect to Ms. Candrilli?

25· · · · A· · So the Investigative Committee decided, you know,
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·1· ·due to the case facts that they wanted to bring

·2· ·Ms. Candrilli in for an appearance in front of them.

·3· · · · Q· · And why generally would the Investigative

·4· ·Committee want to do that?

·5· · · · A· · There would be a couple reasons.· One, kind of

·6· ·just get a feel of how she presents, you know, is there some

·7· ·issues, how does she seem.

·8· · · · · · ·Also, due to the allegations, you know, the

·9· ·serious nature of the allegations and, you know, to see if,

10· ·hey, if there is an issue, meaning substance abuse or do you

11· ·need some type of assistance, maybe we can, you know, help

12· ·you get into a program.

13· · · · Q· · All right.· And so specifically with respect to

14· ·Ms. Candrilli now, why did the Investigative Committee want

15· ·Ms. Candrilli to appear before them?

16· · · · A· · For just basically what I just stated, that they

17· ·wanted to, you know, see how she presented, discuss the

18· ·allegations of, you know, her not responding for one, her

19· ·being terminated for alcohol while she was working.· So all

20· ·of the allegations together, they felt that it was apparent

21· ·that they needed to speak to her directly.

22· · · · Q· · Okay.· And so we will get to it in a moment, but

23· ·so there was another court matter that Ms. Candrilli

24· ·appeared at the courthouse for this time, I believe it was

25· ·the, yeah, the City of North Las Vegas courthouse and she
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·1· ·was arraigned in that proceeding on September 5th.

·2· · · · · · ·Don, do you recall, was that when you served the

·3· ·order for appearance on Ms. Candrilli?

·4· · · · A· · Yes, that's the day Kim and I served her outside

·5· ·of the courthouse.

·6· · · · Q· · And is it right that you served her there because

·7· ·you know, you knew she was going to be there and due to your

·8· ·difficulties in serving her previously you thought it better

·9· ·to serve her on the courthouse steps; is that right?

10· · · · A· · Yes.· And the reason was, one, we preferred not to

11· ·go to her home due to the fact that after Kim and I

12· ·presented the first time to her house, she called Reno and

13· ·sent some faxes stating you came to my house once, don't do

14· ·it again, kind of intimidating/threatening, so we felt it

15· ·would be better to do it in a public setting.

16· · · · Q· · Thank you.· So can you briefly discuss what

17· ·happened at that appearance?· Start from the beginning.

18· ·That appearance occurred, did that appearance occur in

19· ·November of 2019 at the IC meeting in Las Vegas?

20· · · · A· · Yes, sir.

21· · · · Q· · And so how did that appearance first begin?

22· · · · A· · So during the meeting I received a text message

23· ·from an employee from the Nevada State Board of Medical

24· ·Examiners that Melissa Candrilli was out in the, you know,

25· ·kind of the lobby/office, and the gentleman that she was
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·1· ·with, I shouldn't say gentleman, the guy she was with was

·2· ·going to beat her up, and I can't remember if he was

·3· ·choking, going to choke her, but they were worried that he

·4· ·was going to harm her.

·5· · · · Q· · So, I'm sorry, to clarify the record, that was in

·6· ·the Dental Examiner's Office; is that correct?

·7· · · · A· · That's correct.

·8· · · · Q· · And to explain for the record, is it right that

·9· ·the Medical Examiner's Board shares office space with the

10· ·Dental Examiner's Board in Las Vegas; is that right?

11· · · · A· · That's correct.

12· · · · Q· · And you are actually in formerly the Dental

13· ·Examiner's conference room right now, correct?

14· · · · A· · That's correct.

15· · · · Q· · And so when the Investigative Committee conducts

16· ·its meetings, it conducts them in that room, but

17· ·participants are to appear in the Medical Examiner's waiting

18· ·room and then be led in from there; is that right?

19· · · · A· · Correct.

20· · · · Q· · Okay.· And so what happened then?

21· · · · A· · So after I received a text, the IC members were

22· ·ready for Melissa Candrilli, and she was adamant that she

23· ·would not come in unless her boyfriend Johnny Walton was

24· ·able to come in.· So we discussed it, and the Investigative

25· ·Committee decided to let him in.· When I say him, Johnny
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·1· ·Walton, so I brought him back into the conference room.

·2· · · · Q· · So just to recapitulate, so it's your

·3· ·understanding that Mr. Walton, it was reported to you that

·4· ·Mr. Walton was choking Ms. Candrilli in the waiting room of

·5· ·the Dental Board a few minutes before she was led in for her

·6· ·appearance before the Investigative Committee; is that

·7· ·right?

·8· · · · A· · It was my understanding that they were, the Dental

·9· ·Examiners were afraid that he was going to harm her,

10· ·Johnny Lee and Melissa.· I'm not sure if he was choking her.

11· ·I wasn't there, but there was definitely some report to me

12· ·that there was a threat of domestic violence.

13· · · · Q· · So what happened at the appearance in the

14· ·conference room that you are sitting in right now?

15· · · · A· · So the Investigative Committee decided to let him

16· ·come in, and I knew from the second I saw him that he was

17· ·intoxicated.· I could see his eyes.· I could see the way he

18· ·was talking, the way he was acting.

19· · · · · · ·So he ended up sitting down at the end of the

20· ·table here.· I was on the end just like I am here on the

21· ·opposite end.· Kim Friedman was sitting next to me and he

22· ·sat next to Kim.

23· · · · · · ·During this time, he appeared to be very

24· ·aggressive towards Kim Friedman.· He appeared to be

25· ·disruptive during the meeting trying to ask her questions.
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·1· ·He had items in his pocket we were unaware of.

·2· · · · · · ·It got to the point where he was way more

·3· ·aggressive than we wanted due to the fact that, you know, he

·4· ·appeared to be under the influence of alcohol or some

·5· ·substance, it got to the point where I literally grabbed my

·6· ·name plate like this, and not to be blunt, but I thought I

·7· ·was going to have to crack him in the head.

·8· · · · Q· · So, for the record, Mr. Andreas just picked up a

·9· ·name plate that sits on our conference table and weighs a

10· ·couple pounds.· So you, based upon your experience, Don, you

11· ·were afraid that there was going to be some sort of

12· ·altercation with Mr. Walton; is that right?

13· · · · A· · Oh, I felt pretty confident, yeah.

14· · · · Q· · So tell us who was asking, what Investigative

15· ·Committee member was questioning Ms. Candrilli?

16· · · · A· · Dr. Muro.

17· · · · Q· · And noting that you were distracted somewhat by

18· ·Mr. Walton, what was the nature of Dr. Muro's inquiry with

19· ·Ms. Candrilli?

20· · · · A· · You know, I didn't catch much of it, because I was

21· ·too caught up with the way Johnny was acting towards Kim,

22· ·and so I didn't really get the gist of it.· From the little

23· ·bit I did, I think he was trying to decide if she would like

24· ·to get into a program.

25· · · · Q· · And by program you mean an alcohol and drug
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·1· ·treatment program?

·2· · · · A· · Correct.

·3· · · · Q· · And as an investigator for the Board for so long,

·4· ·you are very familiar with the treatment programs and

·5· ·services that are made available to our practitioners; is

·6· ·that right?

·7· · · · A· · Correct.

·8· · · · Q· · And, I mean, Don, how many practitioners have you

·9· ·seen go through such a program over the last 15 years?

10· · · · A· · You know, I couldn't give you an exact number, but

11· ·it's a significant amount.

12· · · · Q· · Yeah.· And so you have personally observed many

13· ·practitioners successfully going through those programs,

14· ·completing them, and returning to practice; is that correct?

15· · · · A· · That's correct.

16· · · · Q· · Okay.· And so at the conclusion of that meeting,

17· ·what was the Investigative Committee's instructions to you?

18· · · · A· · Well, to the investigators it was to get her in a,

19· ·get her an evaluation with a substance alcohol treatment

20· ·program and see where we go from there.

21· · · · Q· · And so how -- So the way that you do that is to

22· ·prepare and deliver to Ms. Candrilli an order for

23· ·appearance; is that correct?

24· · · · A· · Well, at that time it wouldn't be an order for

25· ·appearance.· It would be an order to appear to the provider
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·1· ·that, the professional that we chose to evaluate her.

·2· · · · Q· · Yeah, I'm sorry, that's my mistake.· So did you --

·3· ·And that's what you did, you prepared an order for an

·4· ·evaluation; is that correct?

·5· · · · A· · Correct.

·6· · · · Q· · And then you served that order on Ms. Candrilli;

·7· ·is that correct?

·8· · · · A· · That's correct.· Or I did not.· I believe it was a

·9· ·process server.

10· · · · Q· · Okay.· Thank you.· We will skip forward to and,

11· ·again, there is a more lengthy description of the events at

12· ·issue in that first domestic violence, nominally domestic

13· ·violence incident, so those documents speak for themselves.

14· ·But we will go to Exhibit 17, and can you briefly discuss

15· ·what this is and what it indicates to you about another

16· ·incident involving Ms. Candrilli?

17· · · · A· · So this is a police report from the City of North

18· ·Las Vegas and had to do with an arrest for failure to

19· ·maintain proper, properly maintain travel lane, DUI above

20· ·legal limit.

21· · · · Q· · Thank you, Don.· And, again, these documents will

22· ·speak for themselves, but as part of this police report I

23· ·will offer that there is a discussion of the state

24· ·Ms. Candrilli was in at that time, as well as I will note a

25· ·picture on page 92.· Don, what is that a picture of?
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·1· · · · A· · A photo of a vehicle that is smashed in the front

·2· ·and knocked down an apartment sign.

·3· · · · Q· · So it's your understanding that Ms. Candrilli was

·4· ·involved in a DUI crash where she wrapped her BMW around a

·5· ·parking sign; is that correct?

·6· · · · A· · Into a parking sign, yes, sir.

·7· · · · Q· · Thank you.· Can you turn now to Exhibit 18, page

·8· ·99, and this would be the docket for, the docket sheet for

·9· ·this case.· What is, what does that indicate that was the

10· ·disposition of this case on page 99?

11· · · · A· · She pled no contest and she pled and it was, the

12· ·case was completed.

13· · · · Q· · Okay.· And so, again, she pled that at the

14· ·arraignment -- or, I'm sorry, no, well, at her arraignment

15· ·that was when you served her with the order for the

16· ·appearance that we just discussed; is that correct?

17· · · · A· · Right.

18· · · · Q· · All right.· Exhibit 19, page 104, what is this

19· ·document, Don?

20· · · · A· · This is an Order for Competency Evaluation and

21· ·Fitness to Practice Medicine by the Investigative Committee.

22· · · · Q· · And so this would have been the order that the

23· ·Investigative Committee directed you to have prepared and

24· ·served on Ms. Candrilli; is that correct?

25· · · · A· · Correct.
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·1· · · · Q· · Okay.· And on Exhibit 20 now, page 106, what is

·2· ·this document?

·3· · · · A· · This is a Declaration of Service for Melissa

·4· ·Candrilli for the Order for Competency Evaluation and

·5· ·Fitness to Practice Medicine on 12-3-2019.· It was served by

·6· ·John White who worked for Reno Carson Messenger Service.

·7· · · · Q· · And it was served, was this served at her

·8· ·residence, ?

·9· · · · A· · Correct.

10· · · · Q· · Thank you.· We are almost to the end.

11· · · · · · ·And I would like to spend a little bit of time on

12· ·this document.· Don, page 107, Exhibit 21, what is this

13· ·document?

14· · · · A· · This is a document from PRN that was prepared by

15· ·the Program Director, Larry Espadero and Dr. William Bauer,

16· ·Medical Director.

17· · · · Q· · Don, what is PRN?

18· · · · A· · It's a professional assistance program that goes

19· ·through Monte Vista Hospital that they help professionals

20· ·with substance abuse, alcohol.

21· · · · Q· · And in your 15 years as an investigator, how many

22· ·practitioners have you observed going through the PRN

23· ·program?

24· · · · A· · A significant amount.

25· · · · Q· · Probably, probably more than 100 maybe?
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·1· · · · A· · That probably would be a little high.

·2· · · · Q· · Maybe 50?

·3· · · · A· · Maybe, yeah.

·4· · · · Q· · A better question, you know Mr. Espadero?

·5· · · · A· · I do.

·6· · · · Q· · And you understand that Mr. Espadero regularly

·7· ·performs evaluations of practitioners for PRN; is that

·8· ·right?

·9· · · · A· · He does, yes, sir.

10· · · · Q· · All right.· What is your understanding of what

11· ·occurs in one of these evaluations, Don?

12· · · · A· · So the investigator, you know, prepares a packet

13· ·of all of the documents, the evidence, police reports, and,

14· ·you know, provides it to Mr. Espadero.· He reviews it and

15· ·then he meets with, he met with Melissa Candrilli.· He kind

16· ·of gets the family history, you know, all of her history,

17· ·testings, mental status, and then he provides a summary and

18· ·a recommendation.

19· · · · Q· · And this type of report, Don, is this a report

20· ·that the Investigative Committee regularly relies on in

21· ·determining the fitness for practice or competency of a

22· ·practitioner?

23· · · · A· · Yes.

24· · · · Q· · Again, this document speaks for itself, but I

25· ·would like you to turn to page 108 and read the summary that
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·1· ·Mr. Espadero prepared.

·2· · · · A· · "The client was disheveled, pallid and tremulous,

·3· ·a lot of anxiety and poor historian.· She admits to being

·4· ·alcoholic, and although her memory is poor to the incidents,

·5· ·she does not dispute them.· This could be from blackouts or

·6· ·selective memory.· She is in poor physical shape and may

·7· ·need detox.· This patient is not currently fit to practice."

·8· · · · Q· · So let's look at that last sentence, "This patient

·9· ·is not currently fit to practice."· Don, how many of these

10· ·kinds of reports have you seen over the years?

11· · · · A· · I have seen a few, but not many that come back

12· ·that states that fact.· Usually, you know, they recommend

13· ·that they are in a program but they can still practice

14· ·safely.· This one didn't say that.

15· · · · Q· · So, Don, have you seen -- you have seen reports

16· ·that show that someone is actually well and ready to

17· ·practice; is that right?

18· · · · A· · Correct.· Yes, sir.

19· · · · Q· · And you have seen other reports that say that a

20· ·practitioner may need treatment; is that right?

21· · · · A· · Correct.

22· · · · Q· · And would you say between those first and second

23· ·classes of reports that would be the vast majority of

24· ·reports that you receive from Mr. Espadero on a

25· ·practitioner; is that right?
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·1· · · · A· · Yes.

·2· · · · Q· · So in this case, however, Mr. Espadero took the

·3· ·extraordinary step to note that Ms. Candrilli is unfit to

·4· ·practice; is that right?

·5· · · · A· · That's correct.

·6· · · · Q· · Okay.· And can you tell me once you received the

·7· ·report from Mr. Espadero, what did the Licensing Division do

·8· ·with that information?

·9· · · · A· · Well, the Investigative Division then provided it

10· ·to legal where it was decided that the Investigative

11· ·Committee would review it and decide to summary suspend

12· ·Ms. Candrilli's license.

13· · · · Q· · So it's your understanding that the presentation

14· ·of that report and all other, all evidence was presented to

15· ·the Investigative Committee and that the Investigative

16· ·Committee determined to order that Ms. Candrilli be summary

17· ·suspended; is that right?

18· · · · A· · That's correct.

19· · · · Q· · Thank you.· And, lastly, page 114, the last

20· ·Exhibit 23, there is a, what is this document, Don?

21· · · · A· · Proof of Service of the Complaint and Order of

22· ·Summary Suspension.

23· · · · Q· · And so when, so when we summarily suspend

24· ·somebody, Don, what do we do?

25· · · · A· · So they get hand served the summary suspension
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·1· ·order and their license is suspended at that moment.

·2· · · · Q· · So by this Declaration of Service, Ms. Candrilli

·3· ·was served with not only an Order of Summary Suspension, but

·4· ·a concurrent complaint; is that correct?

·5· · · · A· · That's correct.

·6· · · · Q· · Okay.· So this Declaration of Service demonstrates

·7· ·the fulfillment of the service of the complaint itself.

·8· · · · · · ·Don, for what it's worth, you have discussed you

·9· ·had multiple meetings with Ms. Candrilli; is that right?

10· · · · A· · Yes.

11· · · · Q· · Based upon all of this evidence, in your opinion

12· ·as an investigator, senior investigator for the Board of

13· ·more than 15 years, is Ms. Candrilli unfit to practice?

14· · · · A· · In my professional opinion, I would say so, yes,

15· ·sir.

16· · · · Q· · Don, would you, do you stand ready to help

17· ·Ms. Candrilli receive appropriate services for drug and

18· ·alcohol treatment if she were to contact you?

19· · · · A· · Oh, absolutely.

20· · · · Q· · I know that's speculation, but I want to make it

21· ·for the record that, Don, you would definitely help

22· ·Ms. Candrilli however you could if you were given the

23· ·opportunity; is that right?

24· · · · A· · Yes.· We would give her some suggestions and/or,

25· ·you know, ideas on how to start getting healthy.
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·1· · · · Q· · And, Don, you regularly do that for practitioners

·2· ·that are under investigation; is that right?

·3· · · · A· · We do.

·4· · · · Q· · All right.· Last thing, do you have any personal

·5· ·animosity against Ms. Candrilli?

·6· · · · A· · I do not.· I don't know her other than the few

·7· ·dealings I have had with her.

·8· · · · Q· · Is there anything you would like to say about this

·9· ·case, Don, before I let you go?

10· · · · A· · It's unfortunate that she didn't cooperate,

11· ·because I think we could have helped her, you know, get, you

12· ·know, back to normal.· When I say normal, get her some

13· ·treatment where she could keep her license to practice

14· ·medicine, but, you know, it takes, you know, you got to have

15· ·a willing partner, you know.

16· · · · Q· · All right.· Don, thank you so much for helping us

17· ·out today, and I just, Don is a fantastic investigator and

18· ·he really goes above and beyond on a daily basis to help the

19· ·Board, and I think you have done a really marvelous job, you

20· ·and Kim with this case, so thank you for coming in today.

21· · · · A· · Thank you.

22· · · · · · ·THE HEARING OFFICER:· Thank you, Mr. Andreas.

23· · · · · · ·THE WITNESS:· Thank you.

24· · · · · · ·MR. FRICKE:· I may take a one minute break.

25· · · · · · ·THE HEARING OFFICER:· Sure.
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·1· · (Whereupon a break was taken from 3:10 p.m. to 3:17 p.m.)

·2

·3· · · · · · ·THE HEARING OFFICER:· We will just state we are

·4· ·back on the record in the Melissa Candrilli, RRT, Case

·5· ·Number 19-33868-1.· We have heard testimony from

·6· ·Mr. Andreas, obviously all direct since there is nobody here

·7· ·on behalf of Ms. Candrilli to cross-examine, and so I will

·8· ·go back to Mr. Fricke.· Do you have any other witnesses and,

·9· ·if not, do you want to make a closing argument?

10· · · · · · ·MR. FRICKE:· No, Mr. Woodman, I have no further

11· ·witnesses, so I will close my case and make a brief closing.

12· ·The Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners is tasked with

13· ·maintaining the continuing competency of practitioners that

14· ·are licensed by our Board, and in doing so we must put the

15· ·interests of public protection above the interests of the

16· ·medical profession, and that's found in the Legislative

17· ·declaration for NRS Chapter 630.

18· · · · · · ·That is a unique and I would say extraordinary

19· ·declaration of our job at the Board.· It's to put the needs

20· ·of patients and the protection of the public above the needs

21· ·of individual practitioners.

22· · · · · · ·Now, that's a two-way street.· The patients

23· ·benefit from having good practitioners practicing good

24· ·medicine and a lot of them.· I say that often our job here

25· ·is excellent practitioners, excellent medicine, as many as
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·1· ·possible.

·2· · · · · · ·And Ms. Candrilli has conducted herself in her

·3· ·private life, and sadly and I want to reemphasize, I take no

·4· ·pleasure in this whatsoever in saying this, but

·5· ·Ms. Candrilli has apparently conducted herself in her

·6· ·private life and her professional life and in her dealings

·7· ·with the Board in ways that are simply incompatible with

·8· ·licensure.

·9· · · · · · ·One must possess a license for respiratory care to

10· ·practice respiratory therapy and see patients and attend to

11· ·their needs in this state.· Ms. Candrilli through her

12· ·conduct has demonstrated that she is unfit to fulfill her

13· ·obligations as a respiratory therapist and safely practice

14· ·that art in our state.· So as to Count I of the complaint, I

15· ·would submit that those allegations are abundantly proved.

16· · · · · · ·With respect to Count II, as the evidence

17· ·demonstrates the Board depends upon certain interactions,

18· ·regular interactions with our licensees for us to conduct

19· ·our role of oversight and ensuring the continuing competency

20· ·of our licensees.

21· · · · · · ·As Mr. Andreas testified, the most fundamental way

22· ·that we do that, that interaction, is by a licensing renewal

23· ·application.· It's a very serious document, every

24· ·practitioner knows it.· Whether you are a lawyer or a

25· ·doctor, when you fill out your form to your licensing
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·1· ·agency, you know that you must tell the truth.

·2· · · · · · ·And we ask those questions like have you been

·3· ·investigated for or dismissed from a hospital that's

·4· ·employing you in order to determine whether there is a need

·5· ·to inquire further as to the continuing competency of a

·6· ·licensee.

·7· · · · · · ·And Ms. Candrilli on her licensing application in

·8· ·2019 knowing full well that she had been released from

·9· ·Tenaya from Complex Care having already responded to the

10· ·Board in a, with a correspondence acknowledging that she,

11· ·that that had occurred to her and having been arrested, she

12· ·acknowledged that that had occurred and yet on her licensing

13· ·application she answered no to that question.

14· · · · · · ·So her own, by her own admission the fact that she

15· ·had acknowledged that it had occurred and later denied that

16· ·it had occurred would indicate that it's not only a false

17· ·statement, but that it's willful and intentional, and so I

18· ·would submit that Count II of the complaint has been

19· ·abundantly proved.

20· · · · · · ·Lastly, Ms. Candrilli is not a fundamentally bad

21· ·person, and I don't believe that there is a single staff

22· ·member here who regards her as such.· No doubt Ms. Candrilli

23· ·was a respiratory therapist for many years licensed by our

24· ·Board in good standing that I believe began in the early

25· ·2000s, but a couple years ago her life seems to have taken a
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·1· ·turn for the worse.

·2· · · · · · ·Our Board staff stands ready to assist her however

·3· ·we can with supplying her with resources and referral to get

·4· ·the care that she needs, but regardless, however, her

·5· ·actions are incompatible with licensure and she is unfit to

·6· ·practice.

·7· · · · · · ·And the Board may pending your recommendation,

·8· ·Mr. Woodman, determine that she should not be practicing

·9· ·anymore and there are various avenues to guarantee that she

10· ·is incapacitated from practice.· But as to the allegations

11· ·of the complaint, we believe that they are proved and we

12· ·believe Ms. Candrilli should not be practicing respiratory

13· ·care until further order of the Board.· Thank you.

14· · · · · · ·THE HEARING OFFICER:· Thank you, Mr. Fricke.· I'm

15· ·not going to beat around the bush.· Obviously, I have the

16· ·duty once I get the formal record from our reporter to

17· ·prepare the synopsis and recommendations for the Board and I

18· ·will do that, but there is just not any basis for me to do

19· ·anything here from the record in front of me other than to

20· ·recommend that she be suspended.

21· · · · · · ·What you state in your argument I think is

22· ·appropriate.· Her life has taken a hard left turn in the

23· ·last few years.· There doesn't seem to be any question about

24· ·the fact that alcohol is a problem for her.

25· · · · · · ·We know that's a disease.· We know it can be
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·1· ·treated.· It's up to her to decide what she will do about

·2· ·that, but she does not in any way, shape or form appear fit

·3· ·to be practicing respiratory therapy.

·4· · · · · · ·And, furthermore, the evidence I think is clear as

·5· ·to Count II as well, as far as her making an intentional

·6· ·misrepresentation on the application for, or I guess

·7· ·reapplication for licensure.

·8· · · · · · ·So my findings will be detailed once I have the

·9· ·official record.· I took a good amount of notes, but there

10· ·will certainly be a recommendation consistent with the

11· ·allegations in the complaint.

12· · · · · · ·MR. FRICKE:· And, I'm sorry, I may be interrupting

13· ·you and I'm sorry, Mr. Woodman, but for the record I move

14· ·that Exhibits 2 through 23 be admitted as exhibits.  1

15· ·through 23, but they are stated as Exhibits 2 through 23.

16· ·Obviously, Exhibit 1, the complaint, is part of the record.

17· · · · · · ·THE HEARING OFFICER:· Right, and they will be

18· ·admitted.· And I guess we did miss that in housekeeping,

19· ·but, again, there is nobody here to object that they not

20· ·come in and so they are admitted.· They are now officially

21· ·part of the formal hearing record, and I will get my formal

22· ·written decision out for the Board.· You are hoping to

23· ·present this formally to the Board at which hearing?

24· · · · · · ·MR. FRICKE:· At the last Board meeting of the

25· ·year.· I believe it might be November 30th or the first week
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·1· ·of December, so.

·2· · · · · · ·THE HEARING OFFICER:· That shouldn't be a problem.

·3· ·All right.· Thanks very much and a special thanks to our

·4· ·reporter.

·5· · · (Exhibit Numbers 2 - 23 were admitted into evidence.)

·6

·7· · · · (Whereupon the proceedings concluded at 3:27 p.m.)
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·1

·2· ·STATE OF NEVADA· · )
· · · · · · · · · · · · )· ss.
·3· ·WASHOE COUNTY· · · )

·4· · · · I, CORRIE L. WOLDEN, a notary public in and for the

·5· ·County of Washoe, State of Nevada, do hereby certify:

·6· · · · That on Thursday, the 3rd day of September, 2020, I

·7· ·reported the proceedings in the matter entitled herein; that

·8· ·said witnesses were duly sworn by me;

·9· · · · That said transcript which appears hereinbefore was

10· ·taken in verbatim stenotype notes by me and thereafter

11· ·transcribed into typewriting as herein appears to the best

12· ·of my knowledge, skill and ability and is a true record

13· ·thereof.

14· · · · I further certify that I am not an attorney or counsel

15· ·for any of the parties, nor a relative or employee of any

16· ·attorney or counsel connected with the action, nor

17· ·financially interested in the action.

18

19· · · · ·DATED:· At Reno, Nevada, this 17th day of September,

20· ·2020.

21
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ___________________________________
22· · · · · · · · · · · · · · CORRIE L. WOLDEN, CSR #194, RPR, CP

23

24

25
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·1· · · HEALTH INFORMATION PRIVACY & SECURITY: CAUTIONARY NOTICE

·2· Litigation Services is committed to compliance with applicable federal

·3· and state laws and regulations (“Privacy Laws”) governing the

·4· protection andsecurity of patient health information.Notice is

·5· herebygiven to all parties that transcripts of depositions and legal

·6· proceedings, and transcript exhibits, may contain patient health

·7· information that is protected from unauthorized access, use and

·8· disclosure by Privacy Laws. Litigation Services requires that access,

·9· maintenance, use, and disclosure (including but not limited to

10· electronic database maintenance and access, storage, distribution/

11· dissemination and communication) of transcripts/exhibits containing

12· patient information be performed in compliance with Privacy Laws.

13· No transcript or exhibit containing protected patient health

14· information may be further disclosed except as permitted by Privacy

15· Laws. Litigation Services expects that all parties, parties’

16· attorneys, and their HIPAA Business Associates and Subcontractors will

17· make every reasonable effort to protect and secure patient health

18· information, and to comply with applicable Privacy Law mandates,

19· including but not limited to restrictions on access, storage, use, and

20· disclosure (sharing) of transcripts and transcript exhibits, and

21· applying “minimum necessary” standards where appropriate. It is

22 recommended that your office review its policies regarding sharing of

23 transcripts and exhibits - including access, storage, use, and

24· disclosure - for compliance with Privacy Laws.

25· · · · © All Rights Reserved. Litigation Services (rev. 6/1/2019)
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EXHIBIT 3 



6/4/2018https://practitionerportal.nbrc.org/directory/all

Credentials expire on the date indicated and will not be recognized as valid if this
individual does not complete the Continuing Competency Program requirements. If a
valid thru date is not listed, the credential does not expire and the individual is not
required to participate in the Continuing Competency Program.

CANDRILLI,   CredentialValid Thru

MELISSA T.CRT    05/31/2018

RRT    05/31/2018

mm/dd/yyyy

State
("select [

Birthdate

City

Credential
Pah"

Last Name
pCandrilli

Melissa

First Name

Search

Credential Holders
Login to verify your own credential and request an official credential verification letter.

Employers, Verification Agencies & Consumers
Credentialing information provided by the NBRC (electronic, verbal, written or
otherwise) is considered primary source verification.

Verify Credentials

T^^ ^liht-Cn^' 0^>vO ftp *>

Page 1 of 1, NBRC Practitioner Portal

v

NB^C©
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EXHIBIT 4 



Rachakonda D. Prabhu, M.D, Presient

Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners

Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) section 630.535 provides that the license of a

practitioner of respiratory care shall be automatically suspended until further order of the Board,

should the licensee lose their certification by the National Board for Respiratory Care (NBRC).

Verification provided by the NBRC indicates your certification expired on May 31, 2018.

Accordingly, your license to practice respiratory care in the state of Nevada is hereby

SUSPENDED. Should you practice respiratory care after the service of this order, you shall be in

violation of NAC 630.540(10). The suspension of your license to practice respiratory care shall

remain in effect until further order of the Board.

It is so ORDERED.

DATED this 6th day of June, 2018.

Melissa Teresa Candrilli, RRTTO:

ORDER OF SUSPENSION

)License No. RC1511

)
MELISSA TERESA CANDRILLI, RRT )

In the Matter of the License of:

* * * * *

Before the Board of Medical Examiners of the State of Nevada1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

NSBME0012



EXHIBIT 5 



From:Tara Bailey
Sent:Tuesday, July 03, 2018 11:13 AM
To: '
Cc:Tara Bailey
Subject:RE: National Board of Respiratory Care (NBRC) Certification
Attachments:Order of Suspension.pdf; Envelop.pdf; Change of Address.pdf

Hello Ms. Candrilli,

The Board mailed you the attached Order of Suspension, but it was returned to our office. In addition to the Order
of Suspension, I have attached a change of address form for you to complete and return to the Board if Pecos Park
Avenue is no longer a good mailing address for you.

Respectfully,

Tara Bailey
Licensing Administrative Assistant
Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners
9600 Gateway Drive
Reno, NV 89521
Phone: 
Fax: (775)688.2551

From: Tara Bailey
Sent: Tuesday, May 08, 2018 2:00 PM
To: ' '
Subject: National Board of Respiratory Care (NBRC) Certification

Good afternoon Ms. Candrilli,

Please be advised, this is a courtesy of the Board to remind you your National Board of Respiratory Care (NBRC)
certification is due to expire 05/31/2018.

Per NAC 630.535 Suspension upon loss of certification. (NRS 630.130, 630.279) If a licensee loses certification
by the National Board of Respiratory Care or its successor organization, his or her license to practice respiratory
care is automatically suspended until further order of the Board.

Please let me know if you have any questions or concerns.

Respectfully,

Tara Bailey
Licensing Administrative Assistant
Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners
9600 Gateway Drive
Reno, NV 89521

Fax: (775)688.2551

Tara Bailey
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Rachakonda D. Prabhu, M.D, Presient

Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners

Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) section 630.535 provides that the license of a

practitioner of respiratory care shall be automatically suspended until further order of the Board,

should the licensee lose their certification by the National Board for Respiratory Care (NBRC).

Verification provided by the NBRC indicates your certification expired on May 31, 2018.

Accordingly, your license to practice respiratory care in the state of Nevada is hereby

SUSPENDED. Should you practice respiratory care after the service of this order, you shall be in

violation of NAC 630.540(10). The suspension of your license to practice respiratory care shall

remain in effect until further order of the Board.

It is so ORDERED.

DATED this 6th day of June, 2018.

Melissa Teresa Candrilli, RRTTO:

ORDER OF SUSPENSION

)License No. RC1511

)
MELISSA TERESA CANDRILLI, RRT )

In the Matter of the License of:

* * * * *

Before the Board of Medical Examiners of the State of Nevada1
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25 5 6- 15 2 7 1-11.--iC:  ass 21.895 3190u n c
3

0087/01/13

UNCLAIMED
t i •^:: . f^ :  7"-        *v ^-^    r- o^. si ;•î  -^ ^^.c? i_ .   ! ^j  r up.

Melissa Teresa Candrilli, RRT  ^

^x  de x

ZIP 89502
011E11672023

9171 9690 0935 0096 2298 32

MS^iMl $005.422
FiPSv-Ci-15S M-5LHasler

06'1 1 .'201 3

i
NEVADA STATE BOARD

OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS
9600 Gateway Drive

Reno, Nevada 89521
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June 13, 2018,11:53 am
Notice I .eft (No Authorized Recipient Available)
NORTH LAS VEGAS, NV 89081

Reminder to Schedule Redellvery of your item

June 28,2018,6:01 pm
Unclaimed/Being Returned to Sender
NORTH LAS VEGAS, NV 89033

July 1,2018,1:18 am
Departed USPS Regional Facility
LAS VEGAS NV DISTRIBUTION CENTER

July 1,2018,4:45 pm
Arrived at USPS Regional Facility
RENO NV DISTRIBUTION CENTER

Tracking Number: 9171969009350096229832Remove X

Your item has been delivered to the original sender at 10:50 am on July 2,2018 in RENO, NV 89521.

(3f Delivered
July 2,2018 at 10:50 am,/^-Delivered. To Original Sender /MS % ^ fc

' RENO, NV 89521^

Return Receipt ElectronicV1

Tracking History/S. i?
8.

8"
g.

July 2,2018,10:50 am
Delivered, To Original Sender
RENO, NV 89521
Your item has been delivered to the original sender at 10:50 am on July 2,2018 In RENO, NV 89521.

July 1,2018,9:07 pm
Departed USPS Regional Facility
RENO NV DISTRIBUTION CENTER

Track Another Package +

FAQs > (httpsV/www.usps.com/faqs/uspstracklng-faqs.htm)USPS Tracking^

oo
ALERT: PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS ON SOME APPLICATIONS WILL BE TEMPORARILY UNAVAILABLE FROM 11 PM CT, THURSDAY,.
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Can't find what you're looking for?

Go to our FAQs section to find answers to your tracking questions.

FAQs(https://www.usps.com/faqs/uspstracking-faqs.htm)

See Less /\

Product Information

June 11,2018,6:51 pm
USPS picked up item
RENO, NV 89510

June 11,2018,7:46 pm
Departed Post Office
RENO, NV89S10

June 11,2018,11:00 pm
Arrived at USPS Regional Origin Facility
RENO NV DISTRIBUTION CENTER

June 12,2018
In Transit to Next Facility

June 12, 2018,5:53 pm
Arrived at USPS Regional Facility
LAS VEGAS NV DISTRIBUTION CENTER

June 13, 2018,7:42 am
Arrived at Unit
NORTH LAS VEGAS, IMV 89031

o.o.
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EXHIBIT 6 



Rachakonda D. Prabhu, M.D, President
Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners

ORDER OF REINSTATEMENT OF LICENSE TO PRACTICE RESPIRATORY CARE

The license of the above-named practitioner of respiratory care suspended on June 6, 2018,

for failure to comply with Nevada Administrative Code ("NAC") 630.535. The Nevada State

Board of Medical Examiners finds the licensee has now complied with the provisions of NAC

630.535. It is hereby ORDERED that the license of the above-named practitioner of respiratory

care is reinstated to previous licensure status.

Dated this 26th day of June, 2019.

License No. RC1511
In the Matter of the License to

Practice Respiratory Care of:

MELISSA TERESA CANDRILLI RRT,

Licensee.

*****

BEFORE THE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS

OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
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Mes^age: Good Morning, here is the NBRC Certification you

requ ^s :ed. I really appreciate your time and effort as I am

eage 'ly looking forward to the email of when I can renew my
licen >e Please let me know if you need anything else from me
and I Sciy again, I really appreciate your time and efforts.

Number: 

: NBRC Credentials

Melissa Candrilli

MTION: Kristi Stewart

2019

umber: Fax^

FROM:

Ema

Cont^c

Subj

ATTE

DF2PAGE

26JUME

FAX COVER SHEET

P001Jun 26 2019 09:02am
To:99-1775688551JUN-7-019 00:53 From:
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CRT
Earned: 03/31/2008

Expires: 05/31/2023

RRT
Earned: 05/14/2013

Expires: 05/31/2023

Registry #: 135651

Eligible Exam(s)

EL1SSACANDRILU
rned Credentials
v Purchase History

A praGtjtfonerpbrtairibrc.org  C

Jun 2G 2019 09:02amP002
To=99-17756882551Pa^e^E^EJUN-S7-E019 00:53 From:
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Note: Scanned image may reflect a different destination address due to Intended Recipient's delivery instructions on file.

Thank you for selecting the United States Postal Service8 for your mailing needs. If you require additional
assistance, please contact your local Post Office™ or a Postal representative at 1-800-222-1811.

Sincerely,
United States Postal Service8
475 L'Enfant Plaza SW
Washington, D.C. 20260-0004

fell1
Jlk^ A/^/fcr'

Ml)
m

FM̂a

TSignature of Recipient:

Address of Recipient:

Recipient-Signatu

Delivered, Left with Individual
March 11, 2019,1:36 pm
NORTH LAS VEGAS, NV 89084
First-Class Mail8

Certified Mail™
Return Receipt Electronic

Status:
Status Date / Time:
Location:
Postal Product:
Extra Services:

Item-Detai

The following is in response to your request for proof of delivery on your item with the tracking number:

9171 9690 0935 0096 2913 41.

' POSTAL SERVICE

March 14, 2019

Dear mollie miller.

UNITED STATES

oo
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Iof33/14/2019,8:13 AM

March 10,2019,4:17 pm
Arrived at USPS Regional Facility
LAS VEGAS NV DISTRIBUTION CENTER

March 11,2019, 4:16 am
Departed USPS Regional Facility
LAS VEGAS NV DISTRIBUTION CENTER

March 11, 2019,1:36 pm
Delivered, Left with Individual
NORTH LAS VEGAS, NV 89084
Your Item was delivered to an individual at the address at 1:36 pm on March 11,2019 in NORTH LAS

VEGAS, NV 89084.~

Tracking History

V
Return Receipt Electronic

Text & Email Updates

Get Updates V

March 11. 2019 at 1:36 pm
Delivered, Left with Individual
NORTH LAS VEGAS, NV 89034

Delivered

MARCH  - __2019© 8:00pm©ITI

Tracking Number: 9171969009350096291341Remove x

Expected Delivery by

MONDAY

Track Another Package +

I IQPQ Tran-l^inn^FAQs > (https://www.usps.com/faqs/uspstracking-faqs.htm)

NSBME0024



Telephone 775-688-2559 • Fax 775-688-2321 • www.medboard.nv.gov • nsbme@medboard.nv.gov

March 8,2019
Via Certified Mail

Return Receipt Requested

Melissa Teresa Candrilli, RRTMelissa Teresa Candrilli, RRT
.v/
1N

9171 9690 0935 0096 2913 58

RE: BME CASE #: 19-18575

Dear Ms. Candrilli:

The Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners (Board) has received information regarding events
occurring.on or about January 21, 2019, where you allegedly reported to work at the Complex Care
Hospital at Tenaya under the influence of alcohol. Additionally, since June 6, 2018, you may have been

practicing respiratory care with a suspended license.

It is alleged:

1.On or about January 21, 2019, you reported to work at the Complex Care Hospital at Tenaya
possibly under the influence of alcohol and you were requested to perform a breathalyzer test.

2.You are no longer employed at Complex Care Hospital at Tenaya as a respiratory therapist.

3.On June 6,2018, your Respiratory Care license was suspended by the Board due to the expiration

of your National Board for Respiratory Care (NBRC) certification.

4.On June 11, 2018, an Order for Suspension was mailed to your address on record which was

returned to the Board as unclaimed.

5.The licensee must provide proof of the current NBRC certification to the Board as part of their

licensure requirements.

6.Each licensee shall maintain a permanent mailing address with the Board to which all
communications from the Board to the licensee must be sent. A licensee who changes his or her

permanent mailing address shall notify the Board in writing of the new permanent mailing
address within 30 days after the change.

Therefore, you may be hi need of substance abuse treatment, you may have been practicing respiratory
care with a suspended license since June 6, 2018, and you may have failed to maintain a permanent

address on record with the Board.

o  .o
NEVADA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS

9600 Gateway Drive
Reno, NV 89521

Rachakonda D. Prabhu, M.D.^€^5^.Edward O. Cousineau, J.D.
Board Prasident^^^MhkExacuuva Director
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Mollie Miller
Deputy Chief of Investigations

Respec

According to these allegations, you may have violated the Nevada Medical Practice Act, Nevada Revised
Statutes, Chapters 629 and 630, and Nevada Administrative Code, Chapters 629 and 630 (NMPA).

Please provide a response to the following questions:

1.Please indicate if you provided any respiratory care to patients on January 21, 2019, before you were
requested to perform a breathalyzer test. If so, please indicate how many patients you provided

respiratory care to.

2.Please indicate if you have EVER enrolled in a substance abuse treatment program. If so, please
provide your dates of enrollment, the name(s) and location(s) of the treatment program(s).

3.Please provide a list of ALL of your places of employment since June 6, 2018, where you were
required to possess an active Practitioner of Respiratory Care license as a condition of employment.

Please include who your employe^s) were on June 6,2018.

In order to determine whether or not there has been a violation of the NMPA, please provide a written
response to each question noted above. Please include any further information you believe would be

useful for the Board to make a determination in this matter.

Please reply to this request within 21 calendar days.

The Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners investigates all information received concerning possible
violations of the NMPA. We make no determination as to whether or not there has been a violation of the

NMPA until a thorough investigation is completed. As a physician under investigation by the Board, you
are required by the NMPA to provide the requested information, and your cooperation is not subject to the

whistle-blower protections provided to physicians in NRS 630.364(3).

Please be advised that if the particular allegations referenced above did occur, and depending on the facts
and circumstances, then you may have violated the NMPA, specifically including but not limited to

NRS 630.254(1); NRS 630.277; NRS 630.306(l)(a), (l)(h), (1)Q), (l)(p); NAC 630.530(lXa); NAC
630.535; and NAC 630.540(9), (10), (14), (16).

Please note the Board's new Reno area mailing address:

Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners
9600 Gateway Drive
Reno, NV 89521

oo
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Note: Scanned image may reflect a different destination address due to Intended Recipient's delivery instructions on file.

Thank you for selecting the United States Postal Service* for your mailing needs. If you require additional
assistance, please contact your local Post Office™ or a Postal representative at 1-800-222-1811.

Sincerely,
United States Postal Service®
475 UEnfant Plaza SW
Washington, D.C. 20260-0004

Signature of Recipient:

Address of Recipient

Recipient Signatui

Delivered, Left with Individual
March 11,2019,1:36 pm
NORTH LAS VEGAS, NV 89084
First-Class Mail*

Certified Mail™
Return Receipt Electronic

Status:
Status Date / Time:
Location:

Postal Product:
Extra Services:

Item Detail

The following is in response to your request for proof of delivery on your item with the tracking number:

9171 9690 0935 0096 2913 58.

1 POSTAL SERVICE

March 14, 2019

Dear mollie miller:

UNITED STATES
oo
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Iof33/14/2019,8:16 AM

March 9, 2019, 3:21 pm
Arrived at USPS Regional Facility
LAS VEGAS NV DISTRIBUTION CENTER

March 11,2019,3:31 am
Departed USPS Regional Facility
LAS VEGAS NV DISTRIBUTION CENTER

March 11,2019,1:36 pm
Delivered, Left with Individual
NORTH LAS VEGAS, NV 89084
Your Item was delivered to an Individual at the address at 1:36 pm on March 11,2019 In NORTH LAS
VEGAS, NV 89084."^

Tracking History

Return Receipt Electronic

Text & Email Updates

March 11.2019 at 1:36 pm
Delivered, Left witK Individual'
NORTH LAS VEGAS, NV 89084.

Get Updates V

Delivered

MARCH  _ _^2019© 8:00pm©11

Tracking Number: 9171969009350096291358Remove X

Expected Delivery by

MONDAY
by

Track Another Package +

• IQPQ Tra^lfinfl*FAQs > (https://www.usps.com/faqs/uspstracklng-faqs.htm)

USPS.com® - USPS Tracking® Kesmts
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(NSPOR^^.6-18)

Telephone 775-688-2559 • Fax 775-688-2321  • www.medboard.nv.gov • nsbme@medboard.nv.gov

Mollie Miller
Deputy Chief of Investigations
Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners

Respectf

Dear Ms. Candrilli:

This is the second request for your reply. Please provide the requested reply to the allegations.
Enclosed, please find an Order to Produce Response. Failure to comply with an Order of the Board
constitutes grounds for initiating disciplinary action. See NRS 630.3065. Please reply to this
request within 15 days.

Providing the requested information is deemed a professional obligation of any physician under
investigation by the Board and shall not be deemed to be cooperation subject to the whistle-blower
protections provided to physicians in NRS 630.364(3).

Enclosed is a copy of the original letter sent to you on March 8,2019.

Should you have any questions you may contact me at 775-324-9371.

Melissa Teresa Candrilli, RRT

Via Certified Mail
Return Receipt Requested

April 9,2019

/Melissa Teresa Candrilli, RJR.T

v

9171 9690 0935 0096 3170 65

RE: BME CASE #: 19-18575

Second Request

Edward O. Cousineau, J.D.
Executive Director

Rachakonda D. Prabhu, M.D.
Board President

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS
9600 Gateway Drive

Reno, NV 89521

o
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(NSPOKW.6.K)L-35

Telephone 775-688-2559 • Fax 775-688-2321 • www.medboard.nv.gov • nsbme@medboard.nv.gov

July 3,2019Via Certified Mail
Return Receipt Requested

Melissa Teresa Candrilli, RRT
......--

RE: BME CASE #: 19-18575 - Revised

Dear Ms. Candrilli:

The Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners (Board) has received information regarding events
occurring on or about January 21, 2019, where you allegedly reported to work at die Complex Care
Hospital, at Tenaya under the influence of alcohol. Additionally, from June 6, 2018 through June 26,
2019, you may have been practicing respiratory care with a suspended license.

The Board is also in receipt of your 2019 Practitioner of Respiratory Care application for renewal. On
your renewal application you reported your Board license was suspended for your failure to provide proof
of your current certification by the National Board for Respiratory Care (NBRC); however, you failed to
report being under investigation by Complex Care Hospital at Tenaya for allegations of being under the

influence of alcohol during work hours.

It is alleged:

1.On or about January 21, 2019, you reported to work at the Complex Care Hospital at Tenaya
possibly under the influence of alcohol and you were requested to, and submitted to, a

breathalyzer test.

2.On or about January 25, 2019, you were notified by Complex Care Hospital at Tenaya that you
were suspended from your duties as Respiratory Therapist, PRN, pending the results of an
investigation of allegations of being under the influence of alcohol during work hours.

3.You are no longer employed at Complex Care Hospital at Tenaya as a respiratory therapist.

4.On June 6,2018, your Respiratory Care license was suspended by the Board due to the expiration

of your NBRC certification.

5.On' June 11, 2018, an Order of Suspension was mailed to your address on record which was

returned to the Board as 'unclaimed*.

6.On July 3, 2018, the Board's Order of Suspension was emailed to your email address on record

NEVA^ )STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EX! HNfcK^
9600 Gateway Drive

Reno, NV 89521
Rachakonda D. Prabhu, M.D..^^^^&.Edward 0. Cousineau, J.D.

Board PresidentjSMmi^executive Director

NSBME0034



7.The licensee must provide proof of the current NBRC certification to the Board as part of their

licensure requirements.

8.Each licensee shall maintain a permanent mailing address with the Board to which all
communications from the Board to the licensee must be sent. A licensee who changes his or her
permanent mailing address shall notify the Board in writing of the new permanent mailing

address within 30 days after the change.

9.Board correspondence mailed to your address on record has been returned to the Board as

'unclaimed'.

10.You failed to report on your 2019 Board renewal application that during the time period July 1,
2017 - July 1, 2019, or since your last renewal, you had been under investigation by Complex
Care Hospital at Tenaya for allegations of being under the influence of alcohol during work

hours.

Therefore, you may be in need of substance abuse treatment, you may have been practicing respiratory
care with a suspended license from June 6, 2018 through June 26, 2019, you may have failed to maintain
a permanent address on record with the Board, and you may have renewed your Board license to practice
respiratory care by fraud or misrepresentation or by a false, misleading, inaccurate or incomplete

statement.

According to these allegations, you may have violated the Nevada Medical Practice Act, Nevada Revised
Statutes, Chapters 629 and 630, and Nevada Administrative Code, Chapters 629 and 630 (NMPA).

Please provide a response to the following additional questions:

1.Please indicate if you provided any respiratory care to patients on January 21, 2019, before you
were requested to perform a breathalyzer test. If so, please indicate how many patients you

provided respiratory care to.

2.Please indicate if you have EVER enrolled in a substance abuse treatment program. If so, please
provide your dates of enrollment, the name(s) and Iocation(s) of the treatment program(s).

3.Please provide a list of ALL of your places of employment since June 6, 2018, where you were
required to possess an active Practitioner of Respiratory Care license as a condition of employment.

Please include who your employer(s) were on June 6,2018.

In order to determine whether or not there has been a violation of the NMPA, please provide a written
response to each allegation and question noted above. Please include any further information you

believe would be useful for the Board to make a determination in this matter.

Please reply to this request within 21 calendar days.

The Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners investigates all information received concerning possible
violations of the NMPA. We make no determination as to whether or not there has been a violation of the
NMPA until a thorough investigation is completed. As a physician under investigation by the Board, you
are required by the NMPA to provide the requested information, and your cooperation is not subject to the
whistle-blower protections provided to physicians in NRS 630.364(3).

NSBME0035



Mollie Miller
Deputy Chief of Investigations

Respect

Please be advised that if the particular allegations referenced above did occur, and depending on the facts
and circumstances, then you may have violated the NMPA, specifically including but not limited to
NRS 630.254(1); NRS 630.277; NRS 630.304(1); NRS 630.306(l)(a), (l)(h), (1)G), (l)(p); NAC
630.530(l)(a); NAC 630.535; and NAC 630.540(1), (2), (4), (9), (10), (14), (16), (23).
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1

„„„ ,Telephone: (775) 324-0371
110S rerminsl Wey, Suite 301In-stftte: (398) 890-8810
Reno. Nevada 89502-2U4Fax: (775) 638-25S3

E-mail: mtmlllerSmedboard.iiv.gov
Webeite: www.mebboard.nv.gov

Nevada State Board of ^edical Examiners

MOLUE MILLEFJ, CMBI
Deputy Chiaf of investigations

STATE OF NEVADA

COMMENTS:

PAGES (INCLUDING C07ER):
date:  5^ A>^ ^?^

FAX:

6'9^5 Allante Pkwy, Suits 104
North Us Vegas, NV 89034
702.39S.0ii4 Tel
7Q2.395.1524 Fax
store5580@theupstnre.com
theupsstorelocal.com/55SO

.RECEIVED

AUG 0 5 2019
NEVADA STATE BOARD OF

MEDICAL EXAMINERS

ATTENTION: /^?>/)/^  fY)\ I f
from:fkl^^rA rand{\\\)

TO:

NSBME0041



o• o

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN:
I Melissa Candrilli was informed of accusations as to why I was
suspended from my duties at Complex Care Hospital on approximately

January 21, 2019, During that time I was informed to "self-report'7 after

my suspension from Complex Care Hospital because of the

circumstances that transpired to Nevada Board of Medical Examiners.

I Melissa Candrilli contacted the Nevada Board of Medical Examiners

and upon doing so I was informed that there was not an investigation in

regards to being released from Complex Care Hospital. A short time

afterwards I proceeded to renew my license and was successful in

doing so.

I was suspended/released from Complex Care Hospital for being
disoriented and showing symptoms of being under the influence of

medication and/or alcohol. To that response I will state that I went
from dayshift to nightshi^t and mistook my prescribed medication
causing me to feel a little sick early into my shift. I took my prescribed

medication too close together which won't happen again. In regards to
the breathalyzer test, I submitted to the breathalyzer test because 1 had

nothing to hide, but shortly after doing so I was informed Complex Care
Hospital deemed me intoxicated,• ..... . ' .

V
-   - '.        /

In order to adjust my medication dosages, and to honor the request

of Complex Care Hospital recommendation, I enrolled into the VA
Hospital, located in North Las Vegas, mental health /rehabilitation

program in order to get an accurate assessment on my overall mental
health and proper dosage of medication. I possess the documentation

of the completion of the treatment program and will gladly attach such
documentation.  .

NSBME0042



Sincerely, Melissa Candrilli

{ Melissa Candrilli, in response to not responding or acknowledging
any previous letters mailed to me under the "Order of Suspension", will

inform you that 1 did NOT receive any letters/mail pertaining to that or
any other subject matter from Nevada State Medical Board or Complex

Care Hospital. Earlierthis year! moved to another address after selling

my home and I took the appropriate steps to complete the
^forward/change of address card" through the U.S. Postal Service. I

personally do not know why any mail was returned as unclaimed when

I received all other mail. I again took all the steps through the U.S.

Postal Service to avoid instances such as this from happening.

Being a Respiratory Therapist has been a career and passion for me,

Melissa Candrilli, for many years. I consider this career an honor and a

blessing to help and serve. Please^ if you have any further questions for
me or heed any additional information please feel free to contact me.

NSBME0043
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)0VTelephone 775-688-2559 • Fax 77S-688-2321 ? www.fnedboarC.nv.gov ' nsbme^medbaard.nv.

On July 3, 2018, the Board's Order of Suspension was emailed to your email address oi

^5. On June 11, 2018, an Order.of Suspension was mailed to your address on record

returned to the Board as 'unclaimed'.

Tenaya
to, a

val. On

e proof
failed to

crthe

Canpt
ling events

x Care
Jane 26,

Douslneau, J.D.
!<te Dire^tor

O.

2. On or about January 25, 2019, you were notified by Complex Care Hospital at Tenaya that you
' were suspended from your duties as Respiratory Therapist, PRN, pending the remit!? of an

investigation of allegations of being under the influence of alcohol during work hours.

You are no longer employed at Complex Care Hospital at Tenaya as a respiratory then .pis

.  On June 6,2018, your Respiratory Care license was suspended by the Board due to th^ ex^iration
of your NBRC certification.

On or about January 21, 2019, you reported to work at the Complex Care Hospita at
possibly under the influence of alcohol and you were requested to, and subnitte
breathalyzer test.

It is alleged:

The Board is also in receipt of your 2019 Practitioner of Respiratory Care application for rfene
your renewal application you reported your Board license was suspended for your failure to pi ^i<
of your, current certification by the National Board for Respiratory Care (NBRC); however, y
report being under investigation by Complex Care Hospital at Tenaya for allegations of bein * und

influence of alcohol during work hours.

July 3,2019
Via Certified MJail

Return Receipt Requ

Melissa Teresa Candrilli, RRT

RE: B^p: CASE ^ 19-18575 - Revised

Dear Ms. Candrilli:

The Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners (Board) has received information regar*
occurring on or about January 21, 2019, where you allegedly reported to work at the
Hospital, at Tenaya under the influence of alcohol. Additionally, from June 6, 2018 throu^h
2019, you may have been, practicing respiratory care with a suspended license.

Hdwarr
Rachakonda D. Prabhu, M.D.

Board P/asidant

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS
9600 Gateway Drive

Reno. NV 89521
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^, _  ,T^lephone: (775) 324-9371
1105 Terrpioal Way. Suite 301In-state: (S88) 390-8210
Reno. Nevada 89502-213^Fax: (775) 658-2553

e-mail: rntmilleri^medboard.nv.gov
Website: www.medboard.nv.gov

.Vcvoda Stciie B^ard of i^^dica! Ezanuncrs

MOLLIE MILLER, CMBI
Deputy Chief of Investigations

STATE OF NEVADA

COMMENTS:

/^_ iy)\}}^^~\  PAGES (INCLUDINGCOYER):
CanJr\\\)     date:        A

Q
6935 All^nte Plcwy, SUft^ 104 .
North Las Vegas, NV S90S4
702.395.0114 Tel
702.395.1524 FaX
stDre5580@>theupstQre.com
theuDS5toreloeal.com/55B0

RECEIVED
AUG 06 2019

NEVADASTATE BOARD OF
MEDICAL EXAMiNERS

FROM:

ATTENTION:

TO:

n
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Mental Health Suite - Treatment Plan for
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PROOF OF SERVICE

COMPLAINT AND ORDER OF SUMMARY SUSPENSION

Case No. 19-33868-1

FILED
DEC 2 3 2019

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF

In the Matter of Charges and Complaint

Against

MELISSA TERESA CANDRILLI, RRT,

Respondent.

BEFORE THE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS
OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
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Order#: C23313 NVPRF411

CHRISTOPHER MICHAEL SARTIN
Registration: R-096440
Reno Carson Messenger Service, Inc #322
185 Martin St
Reno, NV 89509
(775) 322-2424
www.renocarson.com

Pursuant to NRS 239B.030 this document does not contain the social security number of any person.

Affiant does hereby affirm under penalty of perjury under the law of the State of Nevada that the
foregoing is true and correct.
Executed on: 12/23/2019
by CHRISTOPHER MICHAEL SARTIN
Registration: R-096440

No notary is required per NRS 53.045

AgeHeightWeight
485'5165

A description of Melissa Candrili is as follows
Gender    Color of Skin/RaceHair
Female   WhiteBrown

DECLARATION OF SERVICE

STATE OF NEVADA
COUNTY OF Clarkss.:

CHRISTOPHER MICHAEL SARTIN, being duly sworn says: That at all times herein Affiant was and is a citizen of the
United States, over 18 years of age, and not a party to nor interested in the proceedings in which this Affidavit is made.

Thai Affiant received copy(ies) of the On 12/20/2019 and served the same on 12/20/2019 at 7:54 PM by delivery and
leaving a copy with:

1. Delivering and leaving a copy with Melissa T. Candrllll, RRT at 

IN THE MATTER OF THE INVESTIGATION OF
MELISSA T CANDRILLI, RRT,

Plaintiff(s),
VS.

I
Defendant(s),

CASE NO:  19-33868-1

IN THE INVESTIGATIVE COMMITTEE OF THE NEVADA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE
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Summary/023313

CANDRILLI
SUMMARY OF SERVICE

ADDRESS, CITY, AND STATE:  

COMPLETED BY   CHRISTOPHER MICHAEL SARTIN reg#: R-096440

Hair: Brown
Race: White

Weight: 165
Height: 5'5

PHYSICAL DESCRIPTION: Age: 48
Sex: Female

DATE & TIME OF SERVICE:  12/20/2019
7:54 PM

DOCUMENTS SERVED: Complaint, Order of Summary Suspension, and fingerprints;

PARTY SERVED:  Melissa T. Candrilli, RRT

BY LEAVING WITH:  Melissa Candrili,

Reference No.:       JOB COMPLETE

CANDRILLI          C23313

CASE NUMBER: 19-33868-1

Brought to you by:
Reno/Carson Messenger Service Inc

1       | Procts Serving I Legal Courier(•.RENO/CARSON/LAS VEGAS
\ I Serving all ol Neva^a Since 1981

(775) 322-2424
Server: CHRISTOPHER MICHAEL SARTIN

SUMMARY OF SERVICE

GPS: 36.2805555555556,-115.170555555556••*               •       "**)

I  ••
V^ •'"•   i

i

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS
9600 Gateway Dr Reno, NV 895218953

WWW.RENOCARSON.COM

NSBME0116
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'3. Within 20 days after the filing of the answer, the parties shall hold an early case conference at which the
parties and the hearing officer appointed by the Board or a member of the Board must preside. At the early case
conference, the parties shall in good faith:

a)Set the earliest possible hearing date agreeable to the parties and the hearing officer, panel of the Board
or the Board, including the estimated duration of the hearing;

b)Set dates:.•

(1)By which all documents must be exchanged;
(2)By which all prehearing motions and responses thereto must be filed;
(3)On which to hold the prehearing conference; and
(4)For any other foreseeable actions that may be required for the matter;

-1-

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on December 19, 2019, a Complaint was filed in

the name of the Investigative Committee of the Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners

pursuant to Chapter 630 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, charging Respondent with violation of

the Medical Practice Act. A true and correct copy of said Complaint was served upon

Respondent on December 20, 2019, and is hereby incorporated by this reference.

Based upon the calendar of the undersigned Hearing Officer, this Notice and Order

Scheduling an Early Case Conference is hereby filed.

ACCORDINGLY, NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that in compliance with NRS

630.339(3)', an Early Case Conference will be conducted on Monday. June 22.2020.

By:

NOTICE AND ORDER SCHEDULING EARLY CASE CONFERENCE

TO:  AARON B. FRICKE, Deputy General Counsel and Attorney for the Investigative
Committee of the Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners, 9600 Gateway

In the Matter of Charges and)CASE NO.: 19-33868-1

Complaint Against)Early Case Conference: 10:00 A.M.
)Monday, June 22,2020FILED

16
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Drive, Reno, Nevada 89521

12
MELISSA CANDRILLI, RRT, 

13

14

1BEFORE THE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS
OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

2

3

4

5

6MELISSA TERESA CANDRILLI, RRT,  )
7Respondent.]JUN ] 2 2020
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or physician assistant of a formal complaint that has been filed with the Board pursuant to NRS 630.311. unless a
different time is agreed to by the parties, the presiding member of the Board or panel of members of the Board or the
hearing officer shall conduct a prehearing conference with the parties and their attorneys. All documents presented
at the prehearing conference are not evidence, are not part of the record and may not be filed with the Board.

2.Each party shall provide to every other party a copy of the list of proposed witnesses and their
qualifications and a summary of the testimony of each proposed witness. A witness whose name does not appear on
the list of proposed witnesses may not testify at the hearing unless good cause is shown.

3.All evidence, except rebuttal evidence, which is not provided to each party at the prehearing conference
may not be introduced or admitted at the hearing unless good cause is shown.

4.Each party shall submit to the presiding member of the Board or panel or to the hearing officer
conducting the conference each issue which has been resolved by negotiation or stipulation and an estimate, to the
nearest hour, of the time required for presentation of its oral argument.

-2-

2221. At least 30 days before a hearing but not earlier than 30 days after the date of service upon the physician

(c)Discuss or attempt to resolve all or any portion of the evidentiary or legal issues in the matter;
(d)Discuss the potential for settlement of the matter on terms agreeable to the parties; and
(e)Discuss and deliberate any other issues that may facilitate the timely and fair conduct of the matter.

Board of Medical Examiners, located at 9600 Gateway Drive, Reno, Nevada 89521, or as soon

thereafter as it may be heard.

NOTICE IS FURTHER HEREBY GIVEN that the Early Case Conference shall be

attended by the parties in person or by any party's legal counsel of record and will be conducted

by the undersigned Hearing Officer in order to discuss and designate the dates for the Pre-

Hearing Conference and Hearing, and other procedural matters established in NRS 630.339.

Respondent may elect to participate in the Early Case Conference by telephone if prior

arrangements are made with the Deputy General Counsel for the Investigative Committee of the

Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners in sufficient time prior to the time and date fixed to

arrange that alternative means of participation.

At the Pre-Hearing Conference, in accordance with NAC 630.4652, each party shall

provide the other party with a copy of the list of witnesses each party intends to call to testify,

including therewith, the qualifications of each witness so identified, and a summary of the

testimony of each witness. If a witness is not on the list of witnesses, that witness may not be

allowed to testify at the hearing unless good cause is shown for omitting the witness from said

beginning at the hour of 10:00 A.M.. in the Conference Room at the Office of the Nevada State
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In identifying a patient as a witness the parties are cautioned to omit from any pleadings filed with the
undersigned administrative hearing officer any addresses, telephone numbers, social security numbers, or other
personal information regarding such individual and to confine their submissions in this regard to the Patient
Designation of the witness, qualifications for the relevancy of any testimony sought to be elicited from that witness
and a summary of the anticipated testimony.

-3-

as specified by the Board;

dependence or any other impairment;

F.A requirement that there be specified supervision of his practice;

G.A requirement that he perform public service without compensation;

H.   A requirement that he take a physical or mental examination or an examination

Hearing Conference may not be introduced or admitted at the hearing unless good cause is

shown.

NOTICE IS FURTHER HEREBY GIVEN that the attorney for the Investigative

Committee and Respondent's legal counsel shall keep the undersigned Hearing Officer advised

of each issue which has been resolved by negotiation or stipulation, if any, and provide at the

Pre-Hearing Conference an estimate, to the nearest hour, of the time required for presentation of

their respective cases.

NOTICE IS FINALLY HEREBY GIVEN that the possible sanctions authorized by

NRS 630.352 and NRS 622.400 to be imposed on the Respondent based on a sustained charge in

regard to one or more of the issues raised in said Complaint include one or more of the following

sanctions:

A.   Placement on probation for a specified period on any of the conditions specified in

1
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the order;

15
B.Administration of a public reprimand;

16
C.Suspension of his license for a specified period or until further order of the Board;

D.Revocation of his license to practice;
18

E.A requirement that he participate in a program to correct alcohol or drug

20

21

22
testing his medical competence;

23
I.A requirement that he fulfill certain training or educational requirements, or both,

All evidence, except rebuttal evidence, which is not provided to each party at the Pre-

3list.
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CHARLES B. WOODMAN, Hearing Officer
Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners
548 W. Plumb Lane, Suite B
Reno, Nevada 89509
(775) 786-9800
hardywoodmanlaw@msn.com

J.       Imposition of a fine on you not to exceed $5,000 for each violation;

K.   A requirement that a practitioner licensed by the State Board of Medical
Examiners, pursuant to NRS 622 .400 pay all costs incurred by the Board relating
to the disciplinary proceedings as more fullseLforth in said statute.

DATED this  // day of June, 2020.
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Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners
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Legal Assistant

DATED this /^?day of(\!(j/no , 2020.

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I certify that on this day, I personally delivered or mailed, postage pre-paid, at Reno,

Nevada, a true file-stamped copy of the foregoing NOTICE AND ORDER SCHEDULING

EARLY CASE CONFERENCE addressed as follows:

AARON B. FRICKE, ESQ.
Deputy General Counsel and Attorney for the Investigative Committee of the Nevada
State Board of Medical Examiners
9600 Gateway Drive
Reno, Nevada 89521

MELISSA T. CANDRILLI, RRT

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13



PROOF OF SERVICE

NOTICE AND ORDER SCHEDULING EARLY CASE CONFERENCE

FILED
JUN 2 2 2020

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF
MEDJgAL EXAMINERS

Case No. 19-33868-1

Respondent.

In the Matter of the Charges and)

)
Complaint Against)

)
MELISSA TERESA CANDRILLI, RRT )

*****

BEFORE THE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS
OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
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Note: Scanned image may reflect a different destination address due to Intended Recipient's delivery instructions on file.

Thank you for selecting the United States Postal Service" for your mailing needs. If you require additional
assistance, please contact your local Post Office™ or a Postal representative at 1-800-222-1811.

Sincerely,
United States Postal Service"
475 L'Enfant Plaza SW
Washington, D.C. 20260-0004
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Address of Recipient:

Signature of Recipient:
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Delivered to Agent for Final Delivery
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11
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14
On Monday, June 22, 2020, a telephonic Early Case Conference was conducted in this

15
matter. Aaron B. Fricke was present on behalf of the Investigative Committee in the conference

16
room of the Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners, and Melissa Candrilli, RRT, appeared

17
telephonically. The undersigned Hearing Officer appeared telephonically as well. The parties

18
agreed to dates for the pre-hearing conference, exchange of documents, and the hearing date.

19
Accordingly, in compliance with NAC 630.465, a pre-hearing conference will be

20
conducted on Friday, July 24, 2020, beginning at the hour of 10:00 A.M., Pacific Standard

21
Time, in the conference room at the Office of the Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners,

22
9600 Gateway Drive, Reno, Nevada 89521. The conference, to be attended by the parties in

23
person or by counsel,1 will be conducted before the undersigned hearing officer to assure that all

24
written information and documentation to be presented by the parties at the formal hearing is

25
fully and completely exchanged.

26

27
2<>'Respondent or Respondent's counsel may participate in the pre-hearing conference by telephone if prior

arrangements are made with counsel for Investigative Committee.

-1-

NOTICE AND ORDER SCHEDULING PRE-HEARING AND HEARING

TO:  AARON B. FRICKE, Deputy General Counsel and Attorney for the Investigative
Committee of the Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners, 9600 Gateway
Drive, Reno, Nevada 89521

MELISSA CANDRILLI, RRT, 6

In the Matter of Charges and)CASE NO.: 19-33868-1

)
Complaint Against)

MELISSA TERESA CANDRILLI, RRT,  )JUN 2 ^ 2020

BEFORE THE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS

OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

Resnondent\NEVADA STATE BOARD OF
Respondent.;mh^CAL EXAMI^ERS



CHARLES B. WOODMAN, ESQ., Hearing Officer
Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners
548 W. Plumb Lane, Suite B
Reno, Nevada 89509
(775) 786-9800

-2-
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hardywoodmanlaw@msn.com
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At the pre-hearing conference each party is to provide the other party with a copy of the

list of witnesses they intend to call to testify, including their qualifications, as well as a brief

summary of their anticipated testimony. If a witness is not included in the list of witnesses, that

witness may not be allowed to testify at the hearing unless good cause is shown.

The formal hearing in this matter is hereby scheduled for Thursday, September 3,

2020, commencing at 1:30 P.M., and continuing through Friday, September 4, 2020,

commencing at 9:00 A.M., at the Office of the Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners, 9600

Gateway Drive, Reno, Nevada 89521. Respondent must be present at the hearing in person.

Following the hearing, the hearing officer will submit to the Board a synopsis of the testimony

taken at the hearing and make a recommendation on the veracity of witnesses if there is

conflicting evidence or if credibility of witnesses is a determining factor, and thereafter the Board

will render its decision. NAC 630.470.

Any other hearings previously set in this matter which conflict with the hearing schedule

set out herein are vacated.

It is further ordered that legal counsel for the Investigative Committee and Respondent or

Respondent's counsel shall keep this hearing officer advised of each issue which has been

resolved by negotiation or stipulation, or any other change in the status of this case.

DATED this 22-day of June, 2020.
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Legassstant

DATED thisb^/day of AlSY}^, 2020.

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I certify that on this day, I personally delivered or mailed, postage pre-paid, at Reno,

Nevada, a true file-stamped copy of the foregoing document addressed as follows:

AARON B. FRICKE, Deputy General Counsel and Attorney for the Investigative
Committee of the Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners, 9600 Gateway Drive, Reno,
Nevada 89521

MELISSA CANDRILLI, RRT, -

7^2^



Dawn DeHaven Gordillo
Legal Assistant

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

I hereby certify that I am employed by Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners and that

on 24th day of June, 2020; I served a copy of the NOTICE AND ORDER SCHEDULING PRE-

HEARING AND HEARING, via USPS e-certified return receipt mail to the following:

Melissa Candrilli, RRT

Dated this 24th day of June, 2020
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PROOF OF SERVICE

NOTICE AND ORDER SCHEDULING EARLY CASE CONFERENCE

By:

FILED
JUL - 7 2020

NEVADA STATE BOARD OFMEDICA^^XAMlNERS
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PREHEARING CONFERENCE STATEMENT OF THE INVESTIGATIVE COMMITTEE

OF THE NEVADA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS

The Investigative Committee of the Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners (Committee)

submits the following Prehearing Conference Statement in accordance with NAC 630.465 and the

Hearing Officer's Notice and Order Scheduling Pre-hearing Conference and Hearing, filed on June

24, 2020.

I.    List of Witnesses:

The Investigative Committee of the Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners lists the

following witnesses whom it may call at the hearing on the charges in the complaint against

Respondent filed herein:

a.Kim Freidman, CMBI, Investigator
Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners

9600 Gateway Drive
Reno, NV 89501

Ms. Freidman is expected to verify some documentary evidence obtained during her

investigation of this case and discuss, if necessary, her investigation of this matter.

b.Don Andreas, CMBI, Senior Investigator
Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners
9600 Gateway Drive
Reno, NV 89501

Mr. Andreas is expected to verify some documentary evidence obtained during his

Case No. 19-33868-1

FILED
JUL 2 ^ 2020

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF
MEMJ2AL EXAMINEF

By:   ^i

In the Matter of Charges and Complaint

Against

MELISSA TERESA CANDRILLI, RRT,

Respondent.
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NSBME 0032-0033

NSBME 0029-0031

NSBME 0021-0028

Ex. 8    NSBME Allegation Letter to Respondent, Second Request, (Dated,
4/9/19)

Ex. 9   Order to Produce Response, (Dated, 4/9/2019)

Ex. 7   NSBME Allegation Letter to Respondent, (Dated, 3/8/19)

Ex. 6   Order of Reinstatement of License to Practice Respiratory Care, (Dated,  NSBME 0018-0020

6/26/19)

NSBME 0013-0017

NSBME 0012

NSBME 0011

NSBME 0009-0010

NSBME 0001-0008Ex. 1Complaint, (Dated, 12/19/2019)

Ex. 2Proof of Service (Dated, 12/23/2019)

Ex. 3National Board for Respiratory Care (NBRC) Certification

Ex. 4Order of Suspension, (Dated, 6/6/18)

Ex. 5    Communication from NSBME, Tara Bailey to Respondent, (Dated,
7/3/2018)

investigation of this case and discuss, if necessary, his investigation of this matter.

c.Melissa Teresa Candrilli, Respondent

Ms. Candrilli is expected to testify as to her conduct and respond to the allegations in the

Complaint.

d.All witnesses identified by Respondent in his prehearing conference statement

and/or in any subsequent amended, revised or supplemental prehearing conference statement, or

list of witnesses disclosed by Respondent of persons she may call to testify at the hearing herein.

II.    List of Exhibits:

The Investigative Committee of the Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners lists the

following exhibits that it may introduce at the hearing on the charges and formal Complaint

against the Respondent.

All exhibits listed in Respondent's prehearing conference statement and any supplement and/or

amendment thereof.
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Aaron BafffflcRe, Esq.
Senior Deputy General Counsel, and
Attorney for the Investigative Committee

Dated this  ^ ^ day of July, 2020.

THE INVESTIGATIVE COMMITTEE of the
NEVADA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS

NSBME 0114-0116

NSBME 0109-0113

NSBME 0107-0108

NSBME 0106

NSBME 0104-0105Ex. 19 Order for Competency Evaluation and Fitness to Practice, (Dated,
12/3/19)

Ex. 20Declaration of Service, (Dated, 12/5/2019)

Ex. 21PRN Assessment, Larry Espadero LADC, (Dated, 12/16/19)

Ex. 22NSBME Order of Summary Suspension, (Dated, 12/19/19)

Ex. 23Proof of Service, (Dated, 12/20/2019)

Ex.16 City of North Las Vegas Police Department, Report of Arrest, (Dated,    NSBME 0073-0081
7/24/19)

Ex.17  City of North Las Vegas Police Department, Report of Arrest, (Dated,    NSBME 0082-0098
8/6/19)

Ex.18 City of North Las Vegas vs. Candrilli, Melissa T, (Dated, 10/7/2019)NSBME 0099-0103

NSBME 0070-0072

NSBME 0047-0069

NSBME 0041-0046

NSBME 0040

NSBME 0037-0039

Ex. 14 Lifecare Health Partners Employment Records for Respondent, (Dated,
1/8/2019 through 1/31/19)

Ex. 15  NSBME License Renewal, (Dated, 6/28/19)

Ex. 11  NSBME Allegation Letter to Respondent, Final Request, (Dated,
7/26/19)

Ex. 12 Affidavit of Service, Order to Produce Response, Final Request &
Allegation Letter (Dated, July 26, 2019)

Ex. 13  Respondent Response to Allegation Letter, (Dated, 8/5/19)

Ex. 10 NSBME Allegation Letter to Respondent, Revised, (Dated, 7/3/19)NSBME 0034-0036
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Dawn DeHaven Gordillo
Legal Assistant

Dated this 24th day of July, 2020.

Mellissa Candrilli, RRT

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

I hereby certify that I am employed by Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners and that

on 24th day of July, 2020; I mailed via USPS e-certified return receipt mail a file-stamped copy of

the following: PREHEARING CONFERENCE STATEMENT OF THE INVESTIGATIVE

COMMITTEE OF THE NEVADA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS. HEARING

EXHIBITS.
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PREHEARING CONFERENCE STATEMENT OF THE INVESTIGATIVE

COMMITTEE OF THE NEVADA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF
ME^CAL EXAMINERS
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FILED
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